
    

  
   

 
   

  
 

 
      

 
 

              
                
       

   
 

               
  

 
                   

                 
           

         
   

             
                 

    
 

   
 

            
       
       

* CITY OF 

SAN ANTONIO 
- TEXAS -

* 

City of San Antonio 

AGENDA PACKET 
Charter Review Commission 

Central Library, 600 Monday, March 4, 2024 5:30 PM Soledad, Auditorium 

A full list of Charter Review Commission meeting dates and times can be found at 
https://SASpeakUp.com/CharterReviewCommission. 

The Charter Review Commission will meet at Central Library, 600 Soledad, Auditorium beginning at 
5:30 PM. Once a quorum is established, the Charter Review Commission will take up the following 
items no sooner than the designated times. 
Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the minutes from the Charter Review Commission meeting on February 22, 2024. 
Public Comments 

Individuals may sign up for live public comment the day of the meeting at the meeting location up to 15 
minutes before the start of the meeting or prior using SASpeakUp. Those unable to attend the meeting 
may submit written comment by calling 311 or using SASpeakUp at 
https://www.saspeakup.com/CharterReviewCommission until 4:00 PM on the business day before the 
meeting. Comments may be provided in English or Spanish and interpretation services will be provided 
with advanced notice. Voicemail comments can be left at 210.207.6889. Voice messages will be 
limited to 300 words transcribed. Comments that do not pertain to the agenda items will not be 
presented to the Commission. 

Briefing on the following items: 

2. Briefing and discussion of the preliminary recommendations from the following subcommittees: 
a. Ethics officer and other ethics revisions 
b. City Council compensation and term length 

https://sanantonio.primegov.com/content/images/org/3ad085.jpg
https://saspeakup.com/CharterReviewCommission
https://www.saspeakup.com/CharterReviewCommission


   
 

               
              

 
 

  
              

  
    

            
 

          
 

    

c. Language modernization 
ADJOURNMENT 
At any time during the meeting, the Charter Review Commission may meet in executive session for 
consultation with the City Attorney's Office concerning attorney client matters under Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 

ACCESS STATEMENT 
If you have difficulty understanding English or have a disability, free language assistance or 

other aids and services are available upon request. Please call 210-207-7068 
or iliana.castillodaily@sanantonio.gov. For individuals with hearing loss contact Relay Texas 

711. Providing at least 72 hours’ notice will help to ensure availability. 

For additional information on the Charter Review Commission, please visit 
https://www.sa.gov/Directory/Departments/CAO/City-Charter/Charter-Review-Commission 

Posted 
on: 02/27/2024 05:07 PM 

mailto:iliana.castillodaily@sanantonio.gov
https://www.sa.gov/Directory/Departments/CAO/City-Charter/Charter-Review-Commission


     

 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
   

 
   

    
 

  
        

  
   

  
        

 

 
        

 

                
 

 
            

 
     

 
  

 
             

 

State of Texas 
County of Bexar 

City of San Antonio 

Meeting Minutes 
Charter Review Commission 

Central Library 
600 Soledad Street 

San Antonio, Texas 78205 

Commission Members 
Bonnie Prosser Elder, Co-Chair | David Zammiello, Co-Chair 

Elva Pai Adams | Josh Baugh | Luisa Casso | Mike Frisbie 
Pat Frost | Frank Garza | Martha Martinez-Flores 

Naomi Miller | Bobby Perez | Shelley Potter 
Dwayne Robinson | Rogelio Saenz | Maria Salazar 

Thursday, February 22, 2024 5:30 PM Central Library 

The Charter Review Commission convened a regular meeting at Central Library, 600 Soledad, 
Auditorium at 5:35 PM. City Clerk Debbie Racca-Sittre took the Roll Call noting a quorum with the 
following Members present: 

PRESENT: 13 – Prosser Elder, Zammiello, Adams, Baugh, Garza, Frisbie, Frost, Martinez-
Flores, Miller, Potter, Robinson, Saenz, Salazar 

ABSENT: 2 - Casso, Perez 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the minutes from the Charter Review Commission (CRC) meeting on 
February 8, 2024. 

Page 1 of 5 

https://sanantonio.primegov.com/content/images/org/3ad085.jpg


     

 
             

 
         

 

    

           

 
     

 
             

 
 

       
       
      
     
   

 
  

                
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
                

 

 
  

                
  

  
 

 
   

  
  

Frank Garza moved to Approve the minutes of the February 8, 2024 Charter Review 
Commission meeting. Pat Frost seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Prosser Elder, Zammiello, Adams, Baugh, Garza, Frisbie, Frost, Martinez-Flores, 
Miller, Potter, Saenz, Salazar 

Absent: Casso, Perez, Robinson 

David Robinson joined the meeting at 5:39 p.m. after approval of the minutes. 

Briefing on the following items: 

2. Discussion of the following subcommittee assignments and issues to be considered by the 
Charter Review Commission. 

a. Ethics officer and other ethics revisions 
b. City Council compensation and term length 
c. City Manager tenure and compensation 
d. Council districts and redistricting 
e. Language modernization 

Council Districts & Redistricting Subcommittee Chair Frank Garza, reported that the 
Subcommittee met and spent the majority of their time on the redistricting process; less time was 
spent on the number of council districts but that was planned to be taken up later by the 
Subcommittee. Co-Chair Zammiello asked if the Subcommittee was still waiting for 
information. Garza replied that the Subcommittee had received all information requested. 

Ethics Officer and Other Revisions Subcommittee Chair Mike Frisbie, reported that the 
Subcommittee met several times to explore whether the current Ethics Auditor position and the 
Ethics Review Board (ERB) were sufficient to meet the expectations of compliance and within 
the appropriate structure. According to Frisbie, two Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) provided 
input to the Subcommittee. Jason King, Chief Legal Officer with the University of Texas at San 
Antonio (UTSA), previously with the Texas Ethics Commission (TEC), provided feedback. 

Frisbie stated that the Subcommittee discussed the responsibilities and term limits of the ERB 
noting that many functions of the ERB were governed by Ordinance and some of those items 
could be moved to the City Charter to strengthen them. On February 21, 2024, the Subcommittee 
met with ERB Chair Patrick Lang who had been the chair for five years and a member of the 
ERB for eight years. Lang had no complaints about how the ERB functioned and considered the 
ERB to be independent from City Council with their role being to provide education versus 
being punitive. Lang supported the extension of ERB term limits and also noted that ERB 
Members could not serve on any other board by Ordinance. Lang told the Subcommittee that the 
current Compliance Auditor’s work was good and he did not think the position needed to be 
elevated or moved from under the City Auditor. 

Page 2 of 5 



     

            

  
  

 
              

 
 

 
 

            
 

   
 

             
 

 
 

              
 

 
 

 
  

             
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
                  

  
   

  
  

 
 

 
              

 
   

 
  

Josh Baugh added that the Ethics Subcommittee discussed organizational structure of a potential 
new Ethics Officer position at length and did not see adequate justification to recommend 
elevating the position. Baugh noted that State Law prohibited City Council from creating a 
position that did not answer to City Council. Co-Chair Zammiello noted that the ERB had 
recommended changes to the Ethics Code and asked how those contributed to the 
Subcommittee’s discussion. Frisbie stated that they were not considered to be a part of the 
charge for the CRC. 

Council Compensation and Term Limits Subcommittee Member Baugh presented on behalf of 

some council districts it was as low as 40 signatures. 

Chair Luisa Casso. He reported that the Subcommittee spent the majority of their time hearing 
from former Councilmembers. The general consensus, according to Baugh, was that there was a 
struggle with the low level of City Council pay with differing opinions related to whether being 
a Councilmember was a public service versus a career. Baugh stated that most of the former 
Councilmembers agreed that a longer term would make them more responsive to constituents. 
Baugh reported that the Subcommittee discussed how City Council pay originated and reviewed 
potential benefits and pitfalls for expanded terms. 

City Manager Tenure and Compensation Subcommittee Chair Pat Frost, stated that the 
Subcommittee met and concluded that our City Manager was underpaid compared to other cities 
around the country as a result of the City Charter limitations. Frost reported that the 
Subcommittee was expected to hear from City Charter SME Charles Zech and would make a 
recommendation by the second week of March 2024. 

Language Modernization Subcommittee Member Shelly Potter reported on behalf of Chair 
Maria Salazar noting that the Subcommittee met on February 21, 2024 and spent time discussing 
recommendations from Frank Garza regarding special meetings and the purpose of them. Frost 
commented regarding a news article related to the special meetings. Potter reported that several 
City departments had submitted recommendations including those from the San Antonio Police 
Department and the Office of the City Clerk. 

Potter noted that the Subcommittee discussed raising the fee for filing for a place on the ballot 
noting that the Subcommittee was leaning toward leaving it at $100 because they could always 
provide a petition in lieu of a place on the ballot. Baugh commented that there had been a 
number of people who just wanted to see their name on the ballot but were not really serious and 
he requested clarification on the number of signatures required. City Clerk Debbie Racca-Sittre 
noted that the law required one half of one percent of the voters in the last general election to be 
placed on the ballot in lieu of a filing fee; for Mayor this was close to 1,000 signatures but for 

Co-Chair Zammiello noted that the Charter Review Commission (CRC) was nearly halfway 
through the process which included ample time for discussion by topic and a public comment 
period. Co-Chair Zammiello stated that the CRC would begin the formal presentations on March 
4, 2024, by the following Subcommittees: Ethics, City Council Compensation and Term Length 
and Language Modernization. The March 21, 2024, CRC meeting was to serve as a checkpoint 
and would include presentations by the following Subcommittees: Council Districts and 
Redistricting and City Manager Tenure and Compensation. 

Page 3 of 5 



     

            
        

 
              

 
 

               

 
 

 
 

 
                 

 
  

 
 

 
  

               
 

 
 

              
  

 

                
 

    
 

 
       

 

   
 

 
               

 

Naomi Miller asked how public feedback would be received. Co-Chair Zammiello explained that 
there were some meetings dedicated to public comment and written feedback would be accepted. 

Co-Chair Prosser Elder outlined key points that should be included in the formal presentations 
noting that staff would assist and a Power Point template had been developed. 

Frost asked whether the presentation needed to include a time for discussion and questions. Co-
Chair Zammiello stated that the Subcommittees would have 20 minutes to present and would 
have approximately 10 minutes set aside for public comment. Co-Chair Zammiello stated that 
Subcommittees would own the content, conclusions and recommendations, however, Co-Chair 
Zammiello offered that the Subcommittees could invite their SMEs to help with their 
presentation. 

Garza asked if there was any opportunity for a member who may miss the meeting to hear what a 
member of the public might have to say. Assistant City Attorney, Iliana Castillo-Daily, stated 
that staff was not recording or streaming public comment, however, if a member of the public 
wanted to provide handouts, or written comments through SA SpeakUp, they would be provided 
to the Committee. She also noted there were limits on the number of minutes a person could 
speak. 

Garza noted that he would not be at the March 4, 2024 meeting and requested to hear the 
comments. Castillo Daily stated that there was no plan to record or transcribe public comments. 
City Clerk Debbie Racca-Sittre stated that the minutes would reflect a brief statement of whether 
the person supported or opposed a change. Co-Chair Zammiello committed to ensuring that 
absent members were provided a proper debrief. 

Baugh asked if the public would comment before or after the presentation. Castillo Daily stated 
that the public comment generally was held at the beginning of the meeting. 

Co-Chair Prosser Elder provided an overview of the next steps and stated that the next meeting 
would be held on Monday March 4, 2024 and would include a report from Ethics, City Council, 
and Language Modernization as well as Public Comment. Co-Chair Prosser Elder clarified that 
the substance of the report and draft recommendations needed to come from the Subcommittee 
and not the staff. 

The Co-Chairs recognized the hard work of the Subcommittees. 

Castillo Daily provide a stack of English/Spanish handouts that the CRC could provide to 
members of the public including information on how to comment. Miller asked where the flyers 
would be distributed. Laura Mayes, Assistant Director of the Communications and Engagement 
Department reported that the flyers would be distributed at libraries, senior centers, community 
centers and City Council field offices as well as by email to Neighborhood Associations and any 
other stakeholders. 

Page 4 of 5 



     

 
 

        

 
 

       

  

    

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further discussion and no objection to adjournment, the meeting was adjourned at 
6:21 p.m. 

Approved 

Bonnie Prosser Elder, Co-Chair David Zammiello, Co-Chair 

Respectfully Submitted 

Debbie Racca-Sittre, City Clerk 

Page 5 of 5 



  

 
   

 
 

 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

           
   

        
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

   

 
  

            
 

  

      

           
 

         
  

      
   

           
 

            
 

      

  
  

               
   

 
  

           

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

Subcommittee: Ethics Officer And Other Ethics Revisions 

Charge: 

Ethics Officer - Whether the City should be able to appoint 
an independent ethics auditor with a legal background 
Other Ethics Revisions - Whether the Ethics Review Board 
should be autonomous with independent oversight and 
power to compel testimony, and whether any additional 
recommendations would strengthen the effectiveness, 
authority, and/or jurisdiction of the board 

Reporting Period: February 22, 2024 

Members in attendance: 

Subcommittee met on February 14 and February 21, 2024. All subcommittee members 
attended as well as staff from the City Auditor’s and City Attorney’s Offices. 

Meeting agenda: 

February 14th Meeting – Jason King 

- Introductions by the subcommittee members and explanation of charge to the 
Speaker 

- Introduction of Speaker and general remarks regarding independence and 
authority of ethics officers 

- Questions by the subcommittee members 

February 21st Meeting– Patrick Lang 

- Introductions by the subcommittee members and explanation of charge to the 
Speaker 

- Introduction of Speaker and general remarks regarding the structure of the 
Ethics Review Board 

- Questions by the subcommittee members 

Discussion summary: 

February 14th – 

- Jason King is the current chief legal officer at UTSA, but he has previously 
worked for the Texas Ethics Commission and has also served as the UT 
System Ethics Officer. 

- Mr. King discussed the general pro and cons for an ethics officers having a 
legal background. He gave some measures that in his opinion, would 
generally provide more independence for the ethics officer, including where to 

1 



  

 
   

             
 

   
           

 
          

 
            

 
 

 

   

              
  

 
     

             
  

 
  

  
 

             
 

               
  

 

          
  

            
 

             
              

         

             
  

               
 

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

host the position, who has firing and hiring power, and who the position would 
report to. 

- Mr. King stated that there is no best practice for ethics boards in terms of 
independence and authority due to the dependence on the context of each 
municipality’s or organization’s structure. He gave pros and cons for term 
limits for the Ethics Review Board and recommended considering stronger 
recusal standards. 

- Finally, Mr. King provided some areas in which he believes the subcommittee 
could consider changes including: scope of the Ethics Review Board, 
requirement for anonymous complaints, and expanding the definition of 
conflict of interest. 

February 21st – 

- Patrick Lang is the current chair of the Ethics Review Board and has served 
in that role for about five years. He has served on the ERB for a total of 
around eight years. 

- Mr. Lang generally has no complaints about how the ERB currently functions 
and believes the ERB to be very independent from City Council. He feels that 
the role of the ERB is to be both educational and punitive and that the 
improved education regarding ethics has reduced the number of complaints 
to the ERB that are outside their jurisdiction. He supported the idea of 
bringing ERB protections from the Ethics Code into the City Charter. 

- Mr. Lang approved of the work of the Compliance Officer and while he 
believes that an Ethics Officer could be beneficial, he can think of no specific 
incident that would require the creation of the position. 

- Mr. Lang discussed the pros and cons of term limits for the ERB members 
and the prohibition of the members serving on separate city boards or 
committees. 

Resources consulted (for example, guests or experts invited to speak, 
benchmarks, or reports): 

- The subcommittee invited Jason King who is current chief legal officer at 
UTSA to consult with him on the role of an ethics officer. 

- The subcommittee also invited Patrick Lang who is the chair of the Ethics 
Review Board to consult with him on the role of the Ethics Review Board. 

Next steps including requests or deliverables needed from staff: 

- The subcommittee chair asked staff to research and provide data on term 
lengths and term limits for boards and commissions throughout the City. 

- It is anticipated that the subcommittee will meet again, at least once, prior to 
the March 7 Charter Commission meeting. 

2 



  

 
   

    

  
           

 
           

 

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

Current subcommittee position and approach: 

- Based on all research and discussions to date, the subcommittee does not 
see a need to create a new executive level, independent Ethics Compliance 
Officer. 

- The subcommittee will continue to explore/discuss ways to enhance the ERB 
and Compliance Officer position. 

3 



  

 
   

 
 

 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

   
        

           
 

   
           

 
 

  
 

   

 
  

          
  

  

      

  

    
             

 
            

 

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

Subcommittee: City Council Compensation And Term Length 

Charge: 

City Council Member Compensation - Whether City 
Council members should be compensated on indexed terms 
that more accurately reflect the city’s cost of living and lower 
barriers to participation in City government 
City Council Term Length - Whether Mayor or Mayor and 
Council terms should be extended to four years with a limit of 
two terms, and whether such terms should be staggered 

Reporting Period: February 22, 2024 

Members in attendance: 

Subcommittee met multiple times in this reporting period. Subcommittee members 
attended as well as staff from the City Manager’s and City Attorney’s Offices. 

Meeting agenda: 

• Interview of former councilmembers . 

Discussion summary: 

• Former councilmembers discussed financial reasons, if any, that led to their 
moving on to new positions following their positions as a council person and the 
financial circumstances during their council term. 

• Former councilmembers generally agreed that two-year terms were too short to 
be productive. 

1 



  

 
   

 
  

   
 
 
 

 
 

         
  

  
  

 
         

 
 

 
   

 
  

   
  

           
 

         

  

           
 

   

            
  

 
        
  
           

 

  

 
            

 

  
  

           
 

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

City Manager Tenure & Compensation 

Charge: 

City Manager Tenure – Whether the City Council should 
have the authority and discretion to hire, manage, and 
determine the length of service of the City Manager 
City Manager Compensation – Whether the City Council 
should determine the compensation of the City Manager so 
that market and competitive indicators are taken into account 

Reporting Period: February 12, 2024 

Members in attendance: Chair Pat Frost; Members Elva Pai Adams, Naomi Miller, 
Dwayne Robinson (conducted by Webex and supported by Liz Provencio, First 
Assistant City Attorney; Renee Frieda, Director of Human Resources; Krystal Strong, 
Assistant Director of Human Resources); Co-Chair Bonnie Prosser Elder and Co-Chair 
David Zamiello also participated. 

Subcommittee Member Martha Martinez-Flores was briefed after the meeting. 

Meeting agenda: 

After subcommittee members joined and HR Director and Assistant Director of HR were 
introduced: 

• Updated Comparator Information: Chief Executive Survey 2024 Local 
Organizations (COSA, Brooks, CPS, ort SA, SAWS, UHS, VIA, ACCD, UTSA, 
County Manager) and Peer Cities (Austin, Dallas, Fort Worth, Phoenix, El Paso, 
Corpus Christi, San Diego, Charlotte, Arlington, Plano, Laredo, Oklahoma, San 
Jose, Lubbock) 

• Language Options (4 options) for Subcommittee Consideration 
• Discussion 
• Next Steps: Additional Requests for Information and Additional Dates for CMTC 

Subcommittee meeting 

Discussion summary: 

The Subcommittee discussed Attachment A reflecting additional Comparator 
Information that included tenure in position plus other factors. (See attachment A Feb. 
12 Comparator Chart.) 

The Subcommittee also discussed four (4) samples of potential charter language to 
capture the intent to address the City’s ability to compete long term and attract City 
Manager candidates in the future. (See attachment B Feb. 12 Language Options). The 
consensus continues to be that the City wants to be competitive. 

1 



  

 
   

 
          

  

   
     

            
   

   
 

   
      

   
 

  
 

         
  

 
 

             
         

 
 

         

          
 

 
            

  
             

  

   

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

Resources consulted (for example, guests or experts invited to speak, 
benchmarks, or reports): 

• Updated Comparator Information: Chief Executive Survey 2024 Local 
Organizations (COSA, Brooks, CPS, Port SA, SAWS, UHS, VIA, ACCD, UTSA, 
County Manager) and Peer Cities (Austin, Dallas, Fort Worth, Phoenix, El Paso, 
Corpus Christi, San Diego, Charlotte, Arlington, Plano, Laredo, Oklahoma, San 
Jose, Lubbock). Attachment A Feb. 12 Comparator Chart. 

o Human Resources Director Renee Frieda and Assistant Human 
Resources Director Krystal Strong attended the meeting. The Human 
Resources Director made observations about the Comparator information 
captured in Attachment C. (Attachment C Feb. 12 HR Points) The 
Subcommittee reviewed the information as the HR Director discussed it. 
She referred to the Geographical Differential that adjusts other cities’ 
salaries to San Antonio dollars. The Subcommittee requested the 
Geographical Differential information be included in another version of the 
chart. That is included in Attachment D. (Attachment D Feb. 12 
Requested Chart). 

• Four (4) Options provided by staff after consulting with outside Counsel, Charlie 
Zech with Denton, Navarro, Rodriguez, Bernal, Santee & Zech were discussed. 
(Attachment B Feb. 12 Language Options). 

Next steps including requests or deliverables needed from staff: 

• The Subcommittee asked for Geographical Differential information to be included 
in the comparator chart. 

• The Subcommittee will revisit City charter language options and requested the 
attendance of the Charter language expert. Charlie Zech will be in attendance at 
the next Subcommittee meeting. 

• After the next Full CRC meeting on February 22, this Subcommittee will meet on 
February 26 at 4:00 p.m. by Webex. 

End of Status Report. 

2 



    
  

 
  

    

 
  

     

  

    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
  

     
  

 

  
   

  
  

          
   

        

             
                           
                               

                             
   

             

   
 

   
  

 
 

  
    

 

    
   

      
 

  

   
 

      

   
  

   
  

 

   
 

    

 
               
            
   

 
    

 

    
  

   
  

 

 
    

  

    
  

 
 

 
    

  

 
    

  

 
    

  

 
 

  

 
    

  

 
   

 

     
  

              

 

  
 

  
      

 

 
 

    
 

  
  

   
   

 
 

 
  

    
 

 
 

             
  

      

             
     

  
  

    
 

  
 

 
   

       
 

 
    

  
 

 
   

  
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

 
   

 
  

 
   

 

   
  

  
 

   

       
  

  
 

  
 

 
   

   
  

  
  

     
 

    
   

       
  

    
 

    

  
    

 
 

   

  
 

 
 

    

          
 

 

City of San Antonio 
2024 Chief Executive Survey 

Local Organizations 
City of San Antonio 

Erik Walsh 

Brooks City Base 

Leo Gomez 
CEO 

CPS Energy 

Rudy Garza 
CEO 

Port San Antonio 

Jim Perschbach 
CEO 

SAWS 

Robert Puente 
CEO 

University Health 
System 

George Hernandez 
President & CEO 

VIA 

Jeffrey Arndt 
CEO 

Alamo College District 

Dr. Mike Flores 
District Chancellor 

University of Texas Ͳ SA 
Taylor Eighmy 

President Ͳ Univ of TX 

Bexar County 
(Population 2 M) 

David Smith 
County Manager 

FY24 Budget $3.7 Billion $15M $1.9B (does not include 
$1.1B fuel budget) 

$76.1M $1.02 B $3B $390.8M $503.9M $671M $2.96B 

Number of Employees 13,703 35 3,370 107 1,937 10,373 2,128 6,000 7,000 5,304 
Tenure in Job 5 yrs 10 yrs 8 mos 1 yr 5 yrs 10 months 15 yrs 19 yrs 10 yrs 5 years 6 years 12 yrs 
Tenure in Organization 29 years 8 mos 10 yrs 8 mos 11 yrs 9 yrs 4 months 15 years 35 yrs 11 mos 11 yrs 25 yrs 6 yrs 27 yrs 
Executive level experience 18 years 5 mos 10 yrs 8 mos No Response 27 yrs No Response 35 yrs 11 mos 25 yrs 12 yrs 18 yrs 20 yrs 

Base Salary $374,400 $367,500 $427,450 $413,438 $593,838 $826,000 $362,250 $400,000 $628,603 $284,124 

Projected Salary Increase and 
Frequency 

Increase consistent with 
City Charter, frequency 
subject to City Council 
annual budget process 

Reviewed annually, 
typically COLA based on 

market 

Reviewed annually Reviewed annually 
based on performance 

At Board's discretion Difficult to speculate 
Increase; 

Awarded annually 

No anticipated increase 
information; 

If increase occurs - Oct. 1 

None- contract renews 
in 2024 

Reviewd annually during 
Board of Regents 

Meeting 

Reviewed at Contract 
Extension 

Contract expires in 2024 

Incentives/Allowances 
Communications $900 $1,800 $0 Cell phone provided $1,800 N/A $0 $2,000 $0 $0 
Vehicle $6,000 $12,000 $0 $12,000 $7,200 $6,000 $0 $12,000 $0 $0 
Insurance Benefits 

Eligible for same benefits 
as staff (civilians) 

Eligible for same benefits 
as staff 

Employer pays for 
all costs 

($23,233) 

Eligible for same benefits 
as staff 

Medical, dental & vision 
for CEO & dependents 

Employer paid all 
($20,397) 

Eligible for same benefits 
as staff 

Eligible for same benefits 
as staff 

Eligible for same benefits 
as staff 

No Response 
Eligible for same benefits 

as staff 
Eligible for same benefits 

as staff (civilians) 

Employer Provided Health Savings 
Account Deposit 

$9,300 $4,300 $750 $0 No Response Not Provided No Response No Response $0 $0 

Bonus 
Up to 15% of base salary 

Max Value = $55,125 
None 

2023 Total Amount = 
$154,031 

Deferred Incentive 
(Pending Clarification) 

Determined by Board 
(Last Award: $200,000) 

$0 No Response 
Determined by Board of 

Regents as applicable 
$0 

Bonus Frequency Annually Annually No Response No Response No bonus; eligible for 
deferred incentive 

Annually None No Response Annually None 

Projected Annual Compensation* $390,600 $440,725 $428,200 $599,866 $602,838 $1,032,000 $362,250 $414,000 $628,603 $284,124 
* assumes maximum incentives available 
Other Information 

Retirement 6% Mandatory Employee 
Contribution 

12% Employer 
Contribution 

(TMRS) 
Value = $44,928 

2-to-1 match up to 6% of 
salary 

Max Value = $25,358 

5% employer 
contribution 

Value = $21,373 

Defined Benefit 
401(a) 

FY23 Employer paid 
$9,250 

3% Mandatory Employee 
Contribution 
3% Employer 
Contribution 

(TMRS) 
Value = $17,815 

Pension Plan (2% 
Employee Contribution) 

Eligible for Defined 
Benefit at age 65 

6% Mandatory Employee 
Contribution, 6% 
Employer Match 

Value = $21,735 

No Response May participate in TRS or 
ORP plan 

7% Employee 
Contribution 

14% Employer 
Contribution 

TCDRS 
Value = $39,777 

Employer Contributions to 
Deferred Compensation 

Employer contributes 
max allowed 

IRS Limit Under 50 = 
$23,000 

Over 50 = $30,500 
Value = $30,500 

Not Provided $0 Match of 50% to 
IRS Limit 

Under 50 = $23,000 
Over 50 = $30,500 

Max Value = $15,250 

IRS Limit 
Under 50 = $23,000 
Over 50 = $30,500 

Value = $30,500 

Employer contributes 
half of IRS limits to 
457 Savings Plan 

Max Value = $15,250 

Employee can participate No Response Depends if TRS or ORP 
plan 

$0 

Prepared by Human Resources 
2/9/2024 



    
  

 
 

    

 
  

     
   

  

    
   

   

   
   

  

    
   

  

   
   

  

    
   

 

    
   

  

    
   

   
  

    
   

   

   
   

  

   
   

  

   
   

  

    
   

  

    
   

  

   
   

  

   
   

  

                    
                  

                                       
                                         

                                      
    

                   
        

                       
                   

     
 

    
   

   

   
 

   
 

   
  

    
   

     
 

  

   
 

    
 

         
 

  
  

                         
                      
     

   
  

   

       
  

 

   
  

    
  

    
   

 

  
  

  
     

   
 

  
   
   
  

   
  

  

         
  
   

   

                   
     

  

    
 

  
 

 
  

   
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
  

   

   
  

  
  

   
  

   
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

   
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

  
 

  

  
 

  
 

 
 

  

  

   
  

  
    

  
 

  

          
   

 
  

          

   

   
  

  

  
 

        

  

  

i i i

i i
l i
i l

i
l i

I i

l
l i l i

i
l i l i

i I

i i
l i

i

i
l i

i , i
i

l ,
l i l i l i

l
l i

i
l i

i
l i

i i
l i

i
l i

City of San Antonio 
2024 Chief Executive Survey 

Peer C ty Organ zat ons 

C ty of San Anton o City of Dal as City of El Paso City of Char otte NC City of Arlington City of Plano City of Laredo City of Oklahoma C ty City of San Jose City of Lubbock City of Midland City of Aust n City of Fort Worth C ty of Phoenix City of Corpus Chr st City of San D ego 
(Popu at on 1.5 M) (Popu at on .9 M) (Popu at on .9 M) (Popu at on 1.7 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on 1.4 M)(Popu at on 1.3 M) (Popu at on .7 M) (Popu at on .9 M) (Popu at on .4 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on .7 M) (Popu at on 1 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on .15 M) 

Er k Wa sh Jesus Garza ( nter m) T.C. Broadnax David Cooke Jeff Barton Cary West n ( nterim) Peter Zanon Er c Dargan Ch ef W. Jarrett Atk nson Marcus D. Jones Trey Yelverton Mark Israe son Joseph Neeb Cra g Freeman Jenn fer Magu re Tommy Gonzalez 
Operat ng Officer 

FY24 Budget $3.7B $5.5B $4.6B $2.5B $6.75B $1.1B $1.5B $5.2B $3.3 B $672M $811M $905M $1.9B $4.5B $960M $400M 
Number of Employees 13,703 16,000 13,469 7,219 17,690 7,111 4,091 12,949 8,195 3,000 3,700 3,500 5,108 7,040 2,500 1,200 
Tenure in Job 5 yrs 1 yr 7 yrs 9 yrs, 6 months 2.25 yrs 8 mos. 4 yrs 10 mos 14 mos 7 yrs 2 mos 12 yrs 5 years 1 year 5 yrs 2 yrs 6 mos 7 years 8 mos 

7 years 8 mos Tenure in Organization 29 years 8 mos 1 yr 7 yrs 9 yrs, 6 months 24 yrs 10 yrs 1 mo 4 yrs 10 mos 14 mos 7 yrs 2 mos 31 yrs 10 mos 24 years 1 year 31 yrs 32 years 
18 years Executive level experience 18 years 5 mos 30 years 26 yrs 2 mos 29 years 6 mos 18 years 6 yrs 1 mo 19 yrs 4 mos 16 years 23 yrs 27 yrs 1 mos 17 years 26 yrs 6 mos 19 years 25 years 18 years 

Base Salary $374,400 $350,000 $423,247 $398,127 $395,762 $328,000 $372,000 $393,744 $451,933 $378,668 $333,583 $270,000 $285,896 $384,388 $354,605 $350,000 
Incentives /Allowances Prior CM = $350,000 Prior CM = $441,807.06 

Communications $900 $1,620 No Response No Response $1,440 Cell phone provided $840 $612 $3,100 $600 No Response $1,200 No Response No Response N/A None 
Vehicle $6,000 No Response $8,400 $7,200 $6,000 $6,000 $7,200 $9,600 $5,700 $6,000 $1,200 $6,000 $7,000 No Response $6,540 $9,000 
Insurance Benefits Eligible for civilian benefits $18,500 No Response Elgible civilian benefits Elgible civilian benefits No Response Eligible for civilian (Not eligible as Interim) Eligible for civilian Eligible for civilian Medical (includes vision), Eligible for city health Eligible for civilian Eligible for civilian Eligible for civilian Insurance Benefits 

benefits Permanent CM eligible benefits benefits Dental, Pharmacy and life insurance benefits beneftis benefits provided by City 
for civilian benefits (Pending Clarification) 

Health Savings Account Deposit $8,300 No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response $1,300 $0 No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response N/A $0 
Lump Sum No No No No No No No No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response $20,749 Not Available $0 
Raise Occurance Increase consistent with No Response Annually (October 1) No Response Council approved No Response Salary is increased by Approval needed by city Performance based Raise TBD 4.5% increase and 4% Annually No Response No Response Annually Contract does not 

City Charter, frequency percentage and performance review council. If applicable, effective July Receives longevity pay $15K contribution include salary 
subject to City Council disbursement annually in May. Council Disbursed 7/1 & 1/1 (July '23 received a 4% like all staff to 401 increases over the 
annual budget process approved percentage. increase to base pay & a (2023 $6,898) 4 yr contract 

$15K contribution to 401 
(a) 

Projected Annual Compensation* $389,600 $351,620 $431,647 $405,327 $403,202 $334,000 $381,340 $422,456 $460,733 $392,166 $334,783 $277,200 $292,896 $405,137 $374,145 $359,000 
* assumes maximum incentives available 

Other Information 

Retirement 6% Mandatory Employee 
Contribution 

12% Employer 
Contribution 

(TMRS) 
Value = $44,928 

Employer contributes 
max allowed IRS Limit 
Under 50 = $23,000 
Over 50 = $30,500 

Value = $30,500 

9% Employee 13.32% Employee 10.65% Employee 5% Employee 8.95% Employee 7% Employee Participation in SDCERS 6% Employee 7% Employee 7% Employee No Response 4.3% Employee Employer 7% Employee None Stated 
Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution; Contribution; Tier II defined benefit Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution to Contribution 

8.68% Employer 22.68% Employer 26.64% Employer 30.24% Employer 14.05% Employer 14% Employer pension plan 12.85% Employer 14% Employer 14% Employer 6% Employer Pension Plan 14% Employer 
Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution (TMRS) 1% Employee Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution 

Contribution and 1% Value = $72,237 (TMRS) 
Value = $30,380 Value = $106,061 Value = $119,678 Value = $46,084 Value = $58,073 Value = $53,014 Value = $95,992 Value = $52,080 Employer Contribution Value = $46,702 Value = $17,153 

to 401(a) plan Value = $49,645 
Value = $3,937 

Employer Contributions to FY23 City paid $23,000 FY23 City paid $18,000 No Response 9% employer FY23 City paid $25,000 FY23 City paid $19,000 No Response 3% to 401(a) 8% of employee FY23 City Paid No Response No Response No Response Built into salary None Stated 
Deferred Compensation contribution to 401(a) contribution off $15,000 

Value = $13,558 base salary FY23 = $26,000 
Value = $35,619 

Prepared by Human Resources 
2/9/2024 

https://441,807.06


 

  

         

       

      
                 

 
                

   
   

      
 

    
                

               
               

       
  

              
 

                 
                 
              

             
        

 
   

  
            

  

        

             
  

  
  

         
 

              
 

              
 

Current Language 

Section 45 of the City Charter Paragraphs 1 and 2 

Sec. 45. City manager—Selection, appointment and removal. 

Par. 1. Selection. The council shall, by a supermajority vote (i.e., at least 67%) of its 
members, appoint a city manager who shall be chosen on the basis of his or her executive 
and administrative qualifications. He or she shall receive annual compensation as fixed 
by the council which, in no event, shall exceed, in total, an amount greater than 10 times 
the annual salary furnished to the lowest paid full-time city employee, and shall, during 
his or her tenure of office, reside within the city. No person ever elected to office as a 
member of the governing body of the city shall be eligible for appointment as city 
manager. 

Par. 2. Appointment and removal. The city manager shall be appointed for an indefinite 
term but may not serve any more than eight years. The city manager may be removed by 
resolution at the discretion of the council by a majority vote of its members. Upon passage 
of a resolution stating the intention to remove the city manager and the reasons therefor, 
a copy of which shall be immediately furnished him or her, the council may suspend him 
or her from duty, but his or her salary shall continue until his or her removal becomes 
effective. Within twenty days after the passage of such a resolution, the city manager may 
reply in writing to it, and may request a public hearing. If so requested the council shall 
fix a time and place for a public hearing upon the question of removal, which shall be held 
not sooner than ten days nor more than twenty days after the receipt of such request. The 
final resolution removing the city manager shall not be adopted until such public hearing, 
if requested, has been held. The action of the council in removing the city manager shall 
be final. In case of the absence, disability or suspension of the city manager, the council 
may designate a qualified administrative officer of the city to perform the duties of the 
office. Pending the selection of any city manager following the adoption of this Charter, 
the council may appoint an acting city manager, who shall have all of the qualifications, 
powers and duties hereinbefore prescribed for the city manager, and who shall serve for 
a period not to exceed three months. 

Four options for brainstorming with the Subcommittee Follow: 

1. Option 1 rewrites paragraph 1 for clarity and discretion based on qualifications 
and experience commensurate with the duties required of the City Manager. 
Option 1 also rewrites paragraph 2 for clarity and to eliminate the tenure cap. 

2. Option 2 rewrites paragraph 1 to remove the cap and include market and 
competitive indicators to determine City Manager compensation. Option 2 also 
rewrites paragraph 2 to eliminate the tenure cap. 

3. Option 3 rewrites paragraph 1 to remove the cap. Option 3 also rewrites 
paragraph 2 to eliminate the tenure cap. 

4. Option 4 rewrites paragraph 1 to remove the cap. Option 3 also rewrites 
paragraph 2 to eliminate the tenure cap and supermajority requirement. 



 

  

       

      
   

   
  

                
   

            
    

              
 

    

        

   
   

  
              

              
   

    
    

    
                  

     
                

               
                  

              
                

  
         

               
                 

                  
 

              
            

  
   

    

Option 1 

Sec. 45. City manager—Selection, appointment and removal. 

Par. 1. Selection. The council shall, by a supermajority vote (i.e., at least 67%) of its 
members, appoint a city manager and determine the total compensation for the City 
Manager. Selection shall be based on the qualifications and experience commensurate 
with the duties required of the City Manager. The City Manager must reside within the 
city limits. Current or former members of the City Council are not eligible to be appointed 
as the City Manager. who shall be chosen on the basis of his or her executive and 
administrative qualifications. He or she shall receive annual compensation as fixed by the 
council which, in no event, shall exceed, in total, an amount greater than 10 times the 
annual salary furnished to the lowest paid full-time city employee, and shall, during his or 
her tenure of office, reside within the city. No person ever elected to office as a member 
of the governing body of the city shall be eligible for appointment as city manager. 

Sec. 45. - City manager—Selection, appointment and removal. 

Par. 2. Appointment and removal. The city manager shall be appointed for an indefinite 
term but may be removed by a majority vote of the council under the following process: 
The City Council must first approve a resolution by majority vote stating the intention to 
remove the city manager and the reasons for the intended removal. Upon passage of the 
resolution the Council may suspend the city manager from his or her duties with continued 
payment of salary until the removal becomes effective. Within 20 days of the passage 
of the resolution the city manager may respond to the resolution in writing and request a 
public hearing of Council. If a public hearing is requested the Council shall conduct the 
public hearing no earlier than ten days from the date of the request and no later than 20 
days after the date of the request for a public hearing. The City Council may pass a final 
resolution removing the city manager after the public hearing has been held. A Council 
vote to remove the city manager shall be final. If the city manager is suspended, removed, 
absent, or not able to carry out the prescribed duties, then the City Council may designate 
an administrative officer of the city to perform the duties of the office. may not serve any 
more than eight years. The city manager may be removed by resolution at the discretion 
of the council by a majority vote of its members. Upon passage of a resolution stating the 
intention to remove the city manager and the reasons therefor, a copy of which shall be 
immediately furnished him or her, the council may suspend him or her from duty, but his 
or her salary shall continue until his or her removal becomes effective. Within twenty days 
after the passage of such a resolution, the city manager may reply in writing to it, and may 
request a public hearing. If so requested the council shall fix a time and place for a public 
hearing upon the question of removal, which shall be held not sooner than ten days nor 
more than twenty days after the receipt of such request. The final resolution removing the 
city manager shall not be adopted until such public hearing, if requested, has been held. 
The action of the council in removing the city manager shall be final. In case of the 
absence, disability or suspension of the city manager, the council may designate a 
qualified administrative officer of the city to perform the duties of the office. Pending the 



 

   
               

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

selection of any city manager following the adoption of this Charter, the council may 
appoint an acting city manager, who shall have all of the qualifications, powers and duties 
hereinbefore prescribed for the city manager, and who shall serve for a period not to 
exceed three months. 



 

  

       

      
                 

  
                 

   
  

   
                  

 

    
 

   
               

 
                  

   
         

                 
                  

 
               

 
              

        
          

   
  

Option 2 

Sec. 45. City manager—Selection, appointment and removal. 

Par. 1. Selection. The council shall, by a supermajority vote (i.e., at least 67%) of its 
members, appoint a city manager who shall be chosen on the basis of his or her executive 
and administrative qualifications. He or she shall receive annual compensation as fixed 
by the council. which, in no event, shall exceed, in total, an amount greater than 10 times 
the annual salary furnished to the lowest paid full-time city employee, In setting the City 
Manager’s compensation the City Council shall take into consideration market and 
competitive indicators. The city manager shall, during his or her tenure of office, reside 
within the city. No person ever elected to office as a member of the governing body of the 
city shall be eligible for appointment as city manager. 

Par. 2. Appointment and removal. The city manager shall be appointed for an indefinite 
term, but may not serve any more than eight years. The city manager may be removed 
by resolution at the discretion of the council by a majority vote of its members. Upon 
passage of a resolution stating the intention to remove the city manager and the reasons 
therefor, a copy of which shall be immediately furnished him or her, the council may 
suspend him or her from duty, but his or her salary shall continue until his or her removal 
becomes effective. Within twenty days after the passage of such a resolution, the city 
manager may reply in writing to it, and may request a public hearing. If so requested the 
council shall fix a time and place for a public hearing upon the question of removal, which 
shall be held not sooner than ten days nor more than twenty days after the receipt of such 
request. The final resolution removing the city manager shall not be adopted until such 
public hearing, if requested, has been held. The action of the council in removing the city 
manager shall be final. In case of the absence, disability or suspension of the city 
manager, the council may designate a qualified administrative officer of the city to perform 
the duties of the office. Pending the selection of any city manager following the adoption 
of this Charter, the council may appoint an acting city manager, who shall have all of the 
qualifications, powers and duties hereinbefore prescribed for the city manager, and who 
shall serve for a period not to exceed three months. 



 

  

       

      
                 

  
                 

  
  

    
 

    
   

 
               

 
                  

   
        

                 
                  

 
               

  
              

        
           

   
  

Option 3 

Sec. 45. City manager—Selection, appointment and removal. 

Par. 1. Selection. The council shall, by a supermajority vote (i.e., at least 67%) of its 
members, appoint a city manager who shall be chosen on the basis of his or her executive 
and administrative qualifications. He or she shall receive annual compensation as fixed 
by the council, which, in no event, shall exceed, in total, an amount greater than 10 times 
the annual salary furnished to the lowest paid full-time city employee, The city manager 
shall, during his or her tenure of office, reside within the city. No person ever elected to 
office as a member of the governing body of the city shall be eligible for appointment as 
city manager. 

Par. 2. Appointment and removal. The city manager shall be appointed for an indefinite 
term, but may not serve any more than eight years. The city manager may be removed 
by resolution at the discretion of the council by a majority vote of its members. Upon 
passage of a resolution stating the intention to remove the city manager and the reasons 
therefor, a copy of which shall be immediately furnished him or her, the council may 
suspend him or her from duty, but his or her salary shall continue until his or her removal 
becomes effective. Within twenty days after the passage of such a resolution, the city 
manager may reply in writing to it, and may request a public hearing. If so requested the 
council shall fix a time and place for a public hearing upon the question of removal, which 
shall be held not sooner than ten days nor more than twenty days after the receipt of such 
request. The final resolution removing the city manager shall not be adopted until such 
public hearing, if requested, has been held. The action of the council in removing the city 
manager shall be final. In case of the absence, disability or suspension of the city 
manager, the council may designate a qualified administrative officer of the city to perform 
the duties of the office. Pending the selection of any city manager following the adoption 
of this Charter, the council may appoint an acting city manager, who shall have all of the 
qualifications, powers and duties hereinbefore prescribed for the city manager, and who 
shall serve for a period not to exceed three months. 



 

  
 
 

       

    
                 

  
                 

    
  

     
 

   
  

 
               

  
                  

    
        

                 
                  

 
               

 
              

          
          

  
  

Option 4 

Sec. 45. City manager—Selection, appointment and removal. 

Par. 1. Selection. The council shall, by a supermajority vote (i.e., at least 67%) of its 
members, appoint a city manager who shall be chosen on the basis of his or her executive 
and administrative qualifications. He or she shall receive annual compensation as fixed 
by the council which, in no event, shall exceed, in total, an amount greater than 10 times 
the annual salary furnished to the lowest paid full-time city employee, and shall, during 
his or her tenure of office, reside within the city. No person ever elected to office as a 
member of the governing body of the city shall be eligible for appointment as city 
manager. 

Par. 2. Appointment and removal. The city manager shall be appointed for an indefinite 
term, but may not serve any more than eight years. The city manager may be removed 
by resolution at the discretion of the council by a majority vote of its members. Upon 
passage of a resolution stating the intention to remove the city manager and the reasons 
therefor, a copy of which shall be immediately furnished him or her, the council may 
suspend him or her from duty, but his or her salary shall continue until his or her removal 
becomes effective. Within twenty days after the passage of such a resolution, the city 
manager may reply in writing to it, and may request a public hearing. If so requested the 
council shall fix a time and place for a public hearing upon the question of removal, which 
shall be held not sooner than ten days nor more than twenty days after the receipt of such 
request. The final resolution removing the city manager shall not be adopted until such 
public hearing, if requested, has been held. The action of the council in removing the city 
manager shall be final. In case of the absence, disability or suspension of the city 
manager, the council may designate a qualified administrative officer of the city to perform 
the duties of the office. Pending the selection of any city manager following the adoption 
of this Charter, the council may appoint an acting city manager, who shall have all of the 
qualifications, powers and duties hereinbefore prescribed for the city manager, and who 
shall serve for a period not to exceed three months. 



 

    
   

     

 
        

 
     

   
    

  
              

     
                 

    
                

   
               

    
            

 
              

                  
  

                 
   

                 
   

  
 

                  
   

     
               

   
 

         
 

               
       

              
              

    
               

  

City of San Antonio 
Charter Commission Committee 

City Manager/Chief Executive Officer Survey 

Large Cities with City Manager Form of Government 

• In addition to San Antonio, we surveyed seven of the largest cities with a city manager form of 
government with populations ranging from 700,000 to 1.7 million residents. When reviewing 
salaries, we have included the actual salaries paid in other cities as well as the actual salary once 
adjusted to San Antonio dollars. This represents the value of each salary if earned in San Antonio 
based on our cost of wages (Economic Research Institute). When considering adjusted salaries, four 
of the seven earned more than San Antonio’s City Manager: 

o The City Manager at Dallas makes $23,508 more (6.3%) and is similar in population size and 
number of employees but having about $1B more in budget. 

o The City Manager at Fort Worth makes $17,872 more (4.8%) and has a smaller population, 
has about half the number of employees, and roughly $1.2B less in budget. 

o The City Manager at Phoenix makes $26,953 more (7.2%) while the population size is 
similar, has about 4,000 more employees, and about $3B more in budget. 

o Charlotte’s City Manager makes $54,084 more (14.4%) and has a smaller resident 
population, has about 5,000 less employees, and a similar budget. 

• Austin, Oklahoma City, and San Jose earned less based on the adjusted salary. 
o Austin currently has an interim city manager, and we are told is expecting to pay a much 

higher salary when a city manager is selected. 
o Oklahoma City has less than of the employees of San Antonio, less than half the population, 

and slightly more than half of the budget. 
o San Jose has a larger budget consistent with the higher cost of living in California and 7,000 

employees compared to San Antonio’s 13,000 employees. 

San Diego 

• We also surveyed San Diego at the committee’s request. San Diego does not have a city manager, 
but has a Chief Operating Officer that reports to the Mayor. 

o San Diego’s COO makes approximately $7,300 less than San Antonio’s City Manager with a 
similar population and a similar number of employees. Like San Jose, San Diego has a larger 
budget consistent with the higher cost of living in California. 

Small Texas Cities with City Manager Form of Government 

• We also surveyed seven smaller Texas cities having a city manager form of government. 
o The city manager of El Paso is an interim. The prior incumbent earned more than San 

Antonio’s city manager despite having a budget of only $1 billion and 7,000 employees. 
o The city manager of Corpus Christi earns approximately $54,000 more than San Antonio’s 

city manager despite having half the budget and only 4,000 employees. 
o The city of Midland only earns about $45,000 less than San Antonio’s city manager despite 

only having $400 million budget and 1,200 employees. 



 

     
               

 

    

                   
 

               
  

               
 

               
 

            
  

               
  

             
  

          
                 

    
 

               
   

              
 

                
                

      
               

  
                 

   
            
                 

 
                  

  

  
 

           
                

      
                

    
  

• Note: Two of the Texas cities surveyed (Corpus Christi and Dallas) were prior City of San Antonio 
Executive Leadership Team members. We should avoid a situation where we grow talent who look 
elsewhere due to the salary. 

Large San Antonio Entities 

• Of the ten local San Antonio leaders surveyed, six have a higher base salary than San Antonio’s City 
Manager. 

o The CPS Energy CEO makes $280,600 more (74.9%) despite having 25% of the employees 
and roughly half of the budget. 

o The Port San Antonio CEO makes $39,038 more (10.4%) even though they have an 
employee count and budget smaller than many city departments. 

o The SAWS CEO makes $219,438 more (58.6%) despite having 14% of the employees and a 
quarter of the budget. 

o The University Health System CEO makes $451,600 more (120.6%) despite managing a 
similar size budget and 3,330 fewer employees. 

o The ACCD District Chancellor makes $25,600 more (6.8%) and has less than half of the 
employees and 13.6% of the budget. 

o The UTSA President makes $254,203 more (67.9%) and has approximately half of the 
employees and 18.1% of the budget. 

■ His salary has already increased in 2024 to $700,301. 
o The Brooks City Base CEO makes $7,000 less than San Antonio’s City Manager in base salary 

but earns more in total compensation despite having only 35 employees and $15 million 
budget. 

o VIA CEO earns $12,000 less despite only having 2,100 employees and $390 million budget. 
o Bexar County Manager makes $90,000 less despite a budget $750,000 smaller and half of 

the employees. The Bexar County Manager contract expires this year which could result in a 
significant change in pay. 

o The City Manager of San Antonio is $129,017 below the average of this group ($503,417). 
• The City Manager of San Antonio does not receive bonuses, but other local CEOs do. 

o Brooks City Base can provide a bonus up to 15% of base salary, which equates to $55,125 if 
the Brooks City Base CEO receives the full amount. This brings his total compensation higher 
than the City Manager of San Antonio. 

• Port SA, University Health and UTSA already provided a higher base salary than San Antonio’s City 
Manager and the gap widens when total compensation is considered. 

o The Port San Antonio CEO received $154,031 in bonuses in 2023. 
o University Health System will provide a bonus as determined by the Board. The CEO was last 

awarded $200,000 in 2023. 
o UTSA will provide a bonus as determined by the Board of Regents, but he was not awarded 

one in 2023. 

Segal Recommendation 

• Segal recommended a salary range $381,022.55 - $609,604.09 in 2019. 
o Adjusted by CPI growth since 2019 (and considering no other factors) that range would be 

$462,561 - $740,059 today. (21.4% increase) 
o Given the City Manager of San Antonio’s 18 years of executive experience and 29 years of 

municipal experience you would expect him to be in the fourth quartile of the pay range 
($670,685 - $740,059). 

https://609,604.09
https://381,022.55


City of San Antonio 
2024 Chief Executive Survey 

Local Organizations 

City of San Antonio 

Erik Walsh 

Brooks City Base 

Leo Gomez 
CEO 

CPS Energy 

Rudy Garza 
CEO 

Port San Antonio 

Jim Perschbach 
CEO 

SAWS 

Robert Puente 
CEO 

University Health 
System 

George Hernandez 
President & CEO 

VIA 

Jeffrey Arndt 
CEO 

Alamo College District 

Dr. Mike Flores 
District Chancellor 

University of Texas SA 
Taylor Eighmy 

President Univ of TX 

Bexar County 
(Population 2 M) 

David Smith 
County Manager 

FY24 Budget $3.7 Billion $15M $1.9B (does not include 
$1.1B fuel budget) 

$76.1M $1.02 B $3B $390.8M $503.9M $671M $2.96B 

Number of Employees 13,703 35 3,370 107 1,937 10,373 2,128 6,000 7,000 5,304 
Tenure in Job 5 yrs 10 yrs 8 mos 1 yr 5 yrs 10 months 15 yrs 19 yrs 10 yrs 5 years 6 years 12 yrs 
Tenure in Organization 29 years 8 mos 10 yrs 8 mos 11 yrs 9 yrs 4 months 15 years 35 yrs 11 mos 11 yrs 25 yrs 6 yrs 27 yrs 
Executive level experience 18 years 5 mos 10 yrs 8 mos No Response 27 yrs No Response 35 yrs 11 mos 25 yrs 12 yrs 18 yrs 20 yrs 

    
  

 
  

    
 

  
     

  

    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
  

    
  
  

  
   

  
  

         
   

        

             
                           
                               

                             
   

             
     

 
 
 
 
 

  
    

 

    
   

      
 

  

  
 

      

   
  

  
    

 

   
 

    

 
               
            
    

   
   

 

 
  

    
 

 

 
   

   

    
  

 
 

 
   

   

 
   

   

 
    

  

 
 

  

 
   

   

 
   

   
 

     
  

              

 

  
 

 
 

      
 

    

 
 

    
 

  
  

   
   

 
 

 
  

    
 

 
 

             
  

      

             
     

  
  

   
  

  
 

 
   

      
  

 
    

  
 

 
   

  
 

   
 

  
  

  
 

 
   

 
  

 
   
  

   
  

  
 

   

      
 

  
 

  
 

 
   

  
  

  
  

     
 

    
   

       
  

    
 

 
    

  
    

 
 

   

  
      

  
 

    

          
 

 

Base Salary $374,400 $367,500 $655,000 $413,438 $593,838 $826,000 $362,250 $400,000 $700,301 $284,124 
Projected Salary Increase and Increase consistent with Reviewed annually, Reviewed annually Reviewed annually At Board's discretion Difficult to speculate No anticipated increase None- contract renews Reviewed annually Reviewed at Contract 
Frequency City Charter, frequency typically COLA based on based on performance Increase; information; in 2024 during Board of Regents Extension 

subject to City Council market Awarded annually If increase occurs - Oct. 1 Meeting Contract expires in 2024 
annual budget process 

Incentives/Allowances 
Communications $900 $1,800 $0 Cell phone provided $1,800 N/A $0 $2,000 $0 $0 
Vehicle $6,000 $12,000 $0 $12,000 $7,200 $6,000 $0 $12,000 $0 $0 
Insurance Benefits Eligible for same 

Medical, dental & vision 
Eligible for same benefits as staff Eligible for same 

Eligible for same for CEO & dependents Eligible for same Eligible for same Eligible for same benefits Eligible for same 
benefits as staff Employer pays for all No Response benefits as staff 

benefits as staff Employer paid all benefits as staff benefits as staff as staff benefits as staff 
(civilians) costs (civilians) 

($20,397) ($23,233) 
Employer Provided Health Savings 
Account Deposit 

$9,300 $4,300 $750 $0 No Response Not Provided No Response No Response $0 $0 

Bonus None 
Up to 15% of base 

salary 
Max Value = $55,125 

None 
2023 Total Amount = 

$154,031 
Deferred Incentive 

(Pending Clarification) 
Determined by Board 

(Last Award: $200,000) 
$0 No Response 

Determined by Board of 
Regents as applicable 

$0 

Bonus Frequency None Annually No Response No Response No bonus; eligible for 
deferred incentive 

Annually None No Response Annually None 

Projected Annual Compensation* $390,600 $440,725 $655,750 $599,866 $602,838 $1,032,000 $362,250 $414,000 $700,301 $284,124 
* assumes maximum incentives available 
Other Information 

Retirement 6% Mandatory 
Employee Contribution 

12% Employer 
Contribution 

(TMRS) 
Value = $44,928 

2-to-1 match up to 6% 
of salary 

Max Value = $25,358 

5% employer 
contribution 

Value = $21,373 

Defined Benefit 
401(a) 

FY23 Employer paid 
$9,250 

3% Mandatory 
Employee Contribution 

3% Employer 
Contribution 

(TMRS) 
Value = $17,815 

Pension Plan (2% 
Employee Contribution) 

Eligible for Defined 
Benefit at age 65 

6% Mandatory Employee 
Contribution, 6% 
Employer Match 

Value = $21,735 

No Response May participate in TRS 
or ORP plan 

7% Employee 
Contribution 

14% Employer 
Contribution 

TCDRS 
Value = $39,777 

Employer Contributions to 
Deferred Compensation 

Employer contributes 
max allowed 

IRS Limit Under 50 = 
$23,000 

Over 50 = $30,500 
Value = $30,500 

Not Provided $0 Match of 50% to 
IRS Limit 

Under 50 = $23,000 
Over 50 = $30,500 

Max Value = $15,250 

IRS Limit 
Under 50 = $23,000 
Over 50 = $30,500 

Value = $30,500 

Employer contributes 
half of IRS limits to 457 

Savings Plan 

Max Value = $15,250 

Employee can participate No Response Depends if TRS or ORP 
plan 

$0 

Prepared by Human Resources 
2/20/2024 



    
  

 
 

    

 
  

     
   

  

    
   

   

   
   

  

    
   

  

   
   

  

    
   

 

    
   

  

    
   

   
  

    
   

   

   
   

  

   
   

  

   
   

  

    
   

  

    
   

  

   
   

  

   
   

  

                    
                  

                                       
                                         

                                        
                  

                   
        

  
                

      
  

                        
                   

     
 

    
   

   

   
 

   
 

   
  

    
   

     
 

  

   
 

    
 

         
 

  
  

                         
                      
     

   
  

   

        
  

 

   
  

    
  

    
   

 

  
  

  
     

    
 

  
   
   
  

   
  

  

         
  

    
 

                   
     

  

    
 

  
 

 
  

   
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
  

   

   
  

  
  

   
  

   
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

   
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

  
 

  

  
 

  
 

 
 

  

  

    
 

  
  
   

 
  

  

         
   

 
  

           

   

   
   
 

  
 

        

  

  

i i i

i i
l i
i l

i
l i

I i

l
l i l i

i
l i l i

i I

i i
l i

i

i
l i

i , i
i

l ,
l i l i l i

l
l i

i
l i

i
l i

i i
l i

i
l i

City of San Antonio 
2024 Chief Executive Survey 

Peer C ty Organ zat ons 

C ty of San Anton o City of Dal as City of El Paso City of Char otte NC City of Arlington City of Plano City of Laredo City of Oklahoma C ty City of San Jose City of Lubbock City of Midland City of Aust n City of Fort Worth C ty of Phoenix City of Corpus Chr st City of San D ego 
(Popu at on 1.5 M) (Popu at on .9 M) (Popu at on .9 M) (Popu at on 1.7 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on 1.4 M)(Popu at on 1.3 M) (Popu at on .7 M) (Popu at on .9 M) (Popu at on .4 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on .7 M) (Popu at on 1 M) (Popu at on .3 M) (Popu at on .15 M) 

Er k Wa sh Jesus Garza ( nter m) T.C. Broadnax David Cooke Jeff Barton Cary West n ( nterim) Peter Zanon Er c Dargan Ch ef W. Jarrett Atk nson Marcus D. Jones Trey Yelverton Mark Israe son Joseph Neeb Cra g Freeman Jenn fer Magu re Tommy Gonzalez 
Operat ng Officer 

FY24 Budget $3.7B $5.5B $4.6B $2.5B $6.75B $1.1B $1.5B $5.2B $3.3 B $672M $811M $905M $1.9B $4.5B $960M $400M 
Number of Employees 13,703 16,000 13,469 7,219 17,690 7,111 4,091 12,949 8,195 3,000 3,700 3,500 5,108 7,040 2,500 1,200 
Tenure in Job 5 yrs 1 yr 7 yrs 9 yrs, 6 months 2.25 yrs 8 mos. 4 yrs 10 mos 14 mos 7 yrs 2 mos 12 yrs 5 years 1 year 5 yrs 2 yrs 6 mos 7 years 8 mos 

7 years 8 mos Tenure in Organization 29 years 8 mos 1 yr 7 yrs 9 yrs, 6 months 24 yrs 10 yrs 1 mo 4 yrs 10 mos 14 mos 7 yrs 2 mos 31 yrs 10 mos 24 years 1 year 31 yrs 32 years 
18 years Executive level experience 18 years 5 mos 30 years 26 yrs 2 mos 29 years 6 mos 18 years 6 yrs 1 mo 19 yrs 4 mos 16 years 23 yrs 27 yrs 1 mos 17 years 26 yrs 6 mos 19 years 25 years 18 years 

Base Salary $350,000 $423,247 $398,127 $395,762 $328,000 $372,000 $393,744 $451,933 $378,668 $333,583 $270,000 $285,896 $384,388 $354,605 $374,400 
$374,400 

$350,000 
What does this salary equal in San Antonio $326,299 $397,908 $392,272 $401,353 $443,572 $397,723 $367,080 $428,484 $381,706 $336,259 $272,166 $302,130 $304,181 $358,529 $333,412 
dollars? (based on cost of wages) 

Prior CM = $350,000 Prior CM = $441,807.06 
Incentives /Allowances 

Communications $900 $1,620 No Response No Response $1,440 Cell phone provided $840 $612 $3,100 $600 No Response $1,200 No Response No Response N/A None 
Vehicle $6,000 No Response $8,400 $7,200 $6,000 $6,000 $7,200 $9,600 $5,700 $6,000 $1,200 $6,000 $7,000 No Response $6,540 $9,000 
Insurance Benefits Eligible for civilian (Not eligible as Interim) Eligible for civilian Eligible for civilian Medical (includes vision), Eligible for city health Eligible for civilian benefits $18,500 Eligible for civilian No Response Eligible for civilian Elgible civilian benefits Elgible civilian benefits No Response Eligible for civilian Insurance Benefits 

benefits Permanent CM eligible benefits benefits Dental, Pharmacy and life insurance benefits beneftis benefits provided by City 
for civilian benefits (Pending Clarification) 

Health Savings Account Deposit $8,300 No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response $1,300 $0 No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response N/A $0 
Lump Sum No No No No No No No No No Response No Response No Response No Response No Response $20,749 Not Available $0 
Raise Occurance Increase consistent with No Response Annually (October 1) No Response Council approved No Response Salary is increased by Approval needed by city Performance based Raise TBD 4.5% increase and 4% Annually No Response No Response Annually Contract does not 

City Charter, frequency percentage and performance review council. If applicable, effective July Receives longevity pay $15K contribution include salary 
subject to City Council disbursement annually in May. Council Disbursed 7/1 & 1/1 (July '23 received a 4% like all staff increases over the 4 yr 
annual budget process 

to 401 
approved percentage. increase to base pay & a (2023 $6,898) contract 

$15K contribution to 401 
(a) 

Projected Annual Compensation* $764,001 $677,920 $829,556 $797,600 $403,202 $334,000 $779,064 $422,456 $460,733 $773,873 $334,783 $277,200 $595,027 $709,319 $732,675 $692,413 
* assumes maximum incentives available 

Other Information 

Retirement 6% Mandatory Employee 
Contribution 

12% Employer 
Contribution 

(TMRS) 
Value = $44,928 

Employer contributes 
max allowed 

IRS Limit Under 50 = 
$23,000 

Over 50 = $30,500 
Value = $30,500 

9% Employee 13.32% Employee 10.65% Employee 5% Employee 8.95% Employee 7% Employee Participation in SDCERS 6% Employee 7% Employee 7% Employee No Response 4.3% Employee Employer 7% Employee None Stated 
Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution; Contribution; Tier II defined benefit Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution to Contribution 

8.68% Employer 22.68% Employer 26.64% Employer 30.24% Employer 14.05% Employer 14% Employer pension plan 12.85% Employer 14% Employer 14% Employer 6% Employer Pension Plan 14% Employer 
Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution (TMRS) 1% Employee Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution 

Contribution and 1% Value = $72,237 (TMRS) 
Value = $30,380 Value = $106,061 Value = $119,678 Value = $46,084 Value = $58,073 Value = $53,014 Value = $95,992 Value = $52,080 Employer Contribution Value = $46,702 Value = $17,153 

to 401(a) plan Value = $49,645 
Value = $3,937 

Employer Contributions to Deferred FY23 City paid $23,000 FY23 City paid $18,000 No Response 9% employer FY23 City paid $25,000 FY23 City paid $19,000 No Response 3% to 401(a) 8% of employee FY23 City Paid No Response No Response No Response Built into salary None Stated 
Compensation contribution to 401(a) contribution off base $15,000 

Value = $13,558 salary FY23 = $26,000 
Value = $35,619 

Prepared by Human Resources 
2/20/2024 

https://441,807.06


 

 

    

               
        

    
              

    
            

    
 

    
          

 
                  

                
 

       
                 
                 

                  
    

      
 

             
                

  

         
 

      

     

     

    

           
   

    

    

Denton Navarro Rodnguez Bernal Santee & Zech, P.C. 
attorneys & counselors at law • rampagelaw.com 

San Antonio I Rio Grande Valley I Austin I Texas Gulf Coast 

2500 W. W illiam Cannon, Suite 609 I Austin, Texas 78745-5320 
0 5 12-279-6431 I F 512-279-6438 

CHARLES E ZECH BIOGRAPHY 

Charles E. Zech has been with the Denton, Navarro, Rodriguez, Bernal, Santee & Zech (the “Firm”) 
since 2006 and a Shareholder since 2011. He served with the United States Navy for six years and was 
honorably discharged. He earned a Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance and a Bachelor of 
Business Administration in Economics from Southwest Texas State University in 1995, a Juris Doctor from 
St. Mary’s School of Law in 1998 and was admitted to the State Bar of Texas that same year. He earned 
his Master of Public Administration from Texas State University in 2008. Mr. Zech has 26 years of legal 
experience, 23 years of expertise in local government and municipal law as city attorney and special 
counsel. 

Mr. Zech, in association with his master’s degree, authored a comprehensive research project 
reviewing all Home Rule Charters in Texas. A copy of this research project may be located at 
https://digital.library.txst.edu/items/86ebdd95-db7b-41ce-881c-a7a2e39bc99d. In addition, the Firm and 
Mr. Zech assisted the Texas Municipal League in the most recent drafting of their book “Texas Home Rule 
Charters – Second Edition (2010)”, which is an update to Terrell Blodgett’s monograph, "Texas Home Rule 
Charters". 

Mr. Zech has been assisting City administrative personnel, elected officials, and appointed citizen 
charter review committees in both the initial creation of a home rule charter and in reviewing, updating, and 
revising city home rule charters to ensure they comply with all relevant federal and state laws and providing 
recommend revisions for over 20 years. His first such review occurred during his tenure as the City of New 
Braunfels City Attorney in 2002. In addition to assisting cities in the review and creation of home rule 
charters, Mr. Zech is engaged by cities when initiatives have been filed with cities to amend home rule 
charters to assist in the review of the petition proposed amendments to ensure compliance with state law 
process and that the proposed amendments are legally authorized. Finally, Mr. Zech is engaged by cities 
to assist in the interpretation of particular clauses and language in Home Rule Charters when questions as 
to impact and intent arise. 

In the last five years Mr. Zech has assisted the following Cities in the creation of their first home 
rule charter: 

• City of Fair Oaks Ranch 

• City of Fort Stockton 

• City of Garden Ridge 

• City of Wolfforth 

In the last five years Mr. Zech has been engaged to assist the following cities in the review and 
amendment of their home rule charters: 

• City of Alice 

• City of Beamont 

https://digital.library.txst.edu/items/86ebdd95-db7b-41ce-881c-a7a2e39bc99d


 

     

     

    

    

     

    

     

    

    

    

    

     

    

     

    

    

 
 

     

     

     

    
 

   
 

          
       
   
   
    
       
      
      
          

 

                   
                    
                  

• City of Bee Cave 

• City of Big Springs 

• City of Boerne 

• City of Brady 

• City of Burnet 1 

• City of Coleman 

• City of Copperas Cove2 

• City of Crockett 

• City of Granbury 

• City of Hitchcock 

• City of Pflugerville3 

• City of Prairie View 

• City of Robstown 

• City of Santa Fe 

• City of Schertz 

• City of Victoria 

In the last five years Mr. Zech has assisted the following cities in handling the legal and process 
issues associated with citizen-initiated petitions to amend their charters and charter interpretation: 

• City of El Paso 

• City of Corpus Christi 

• City of San Antonio 

• City of Taylor 

Areas of Practices 

• Home Rule Charter creation, review and defense in litigation, 
• City Attorney/General Counsel/Special Counsel Development Agreements, 
• Economic Development 
• Employment Law, 
• Land Use Law 
• Ethics Compliance and Public Integrity Investigations, 
• Open Meetings and Public Information, 
• General Ordinance and Resolution Drafting, 
• Texas Public Information Act – Open Records Water Rights, 

1 Mr. Zech has assisted the City of Burnet in multiple reviews and amendments over the last 15 years. 
2 Mr. Zech has assisted the City of Copperas Cove in multiple reviews and amendments over the last 15 years. 
3 Mr. Zech has assisted the City of Pflugerville in multiple reviews and amendments over the last 15 years. 



 

  
 

  
 

           
      
         
         

 
 

 
            
              
    

   
    

   
 

    
 

  
    

        
        
        
     
           
          

 
  

 
            

 
          

               
              

 
 

        
 

           
            

 
         

 
 

    
  

  
   

• Zoning 

Bar Admissions 

• State Bar of Texas, 1998 - State Bar No. 50511785 
• All Texas State Courts, 1998 
• U.S. District Court Northern District of Texas, 1998 
• U.S. District Court Western District of Texas, 1998 

Education 

• Texas State University, San Marcos, Texas; Master of Public Administration – 2008 
• St. Mary’s University School of Law, San Antonio, Texas; Juris Doctor – 1998 
• Southwest Texas State University, San Marcos, Texas; Bachelor of Business Administration in 

Finance – 1995 
• Southwest Texas State University, San Marcos, Texas; Bachelor of Business Administration in 

Economics – 1995 

Professional Associations and Memberships 

• International Municipal Lawyer’s Association 2001 to Present; Chair: Ethics Section, 2003-2005 
Local; Government Fellow, 2007 - Present 

• Suing and Defending Governmental Entities Faculty, 2004; 
• San Antonio Bar Association Texas Bar Association 
• Texas City Attorneys Association, Past President 2010-2011 
• Texas City Managers Association 
• The College of the State Bar Association, 2002 to Present 
• University of Texas Land Use Faculty, 2008 to Present 

Employment Experience 

• Denton Navarro Rodriguez Bernal Santee and Zech, P.C (2006 to Present) 

Shareholder. Handling all aspects of municipal representation, providing counsel to city councils, 
commissions, boards, and other governing bodies concerning a variety of complex issues, with an 
emphasis on contract law, municipal and governmental law, planning and zoning, land use, open meetings, 
open records, contract drafting and negotiations, conducting legal research and analyzing laws, local codes 
and regulations pertaining to municipal governments. 

• City of New Braunfels (2004 – 2006) 

Deputy City Manager. Handled all aspects of municipal management, with supervisory 
responsibility for Finance, Human Resources, Municipal Court, Technology, and City Secretary’s Office. 

• City of New Braunfels – (2001 – 2006) 

City Attorney. Handled all aspects of municipal representation, represented the City of New 
Braunfels and the City Council in a variety of complex issues, with an emphasis on contract law, local 
government law, zoning, land use, and planning; conducted statutory research and analyzed laws and 
regulations regarding municipalities, advising the City of New Braunfels, City Council, the Economic 
Development Corporation, and City Staff on a wide variety of legal issues and in litigation. 



 

               
               
               
     

• Owner - Law Office of Charles E. Zech – (September 2000 – August 2001) 
• Associate Attorney - Law Offices of George W. Mauze (May 1998 – September 2000) 
• Law Clerk - Law Offices of George W. Mauze (June 1997 – May 1998) 
• United States Navy 1986-1992 



  

 
   

 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
     

 
 

 
        

 
 

  
 

   

 
           

 
 

  

   
           

 
         
     
        
             

    

 

          
  
          
     
        
             

          
  

          

         

       

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

Subcommittee: Council Districts and Redistricting 

Charge: 

Council Districts - Whether an increase in single-member 
Council districts would appropriately enhance representation 
for San Antonio residents 
Redistricting - Whether the decennial Council redistricting 
process should be conducted by an independent, 
autonomous citizens committee and how such a committee’s 
membership shall be appointed 

Reporting Period: February 22, 2024 

Members in attendance: Frank Garza (Chair), Naomi Miller, Dr. Rogelio Saenz and 
Maria Salazar. COSA staff: John Peterek (CMO), Megan Janzen (CMO), and Iliana 
Castillo Daily (CAO). 

Meeting agenda: 

• Continued discussion of 2021 redistricting process and drafting a Charter 
provision establishing a redistricting commission for the City of San Antonio that 
would include: 

o Who can and cannot serve on an advisory commission, 
o How council appoints members, 
o Communication between the commission and council, and 
o How Council may amend a recommended plan and approve a final plan. 

• Set next meeting (March12th) 

Discussion summary: 

• Review and discussion of draft Charter provision that includes subcommittee’s 
input from previous meeting and addresses: 

o Who can and cannot serve on an advisory commission, 
o How council appoints members, 
o Communication between the commission and council, and 
o How Council may amend a recommended plan and approve a final plan. 

Resources consulted (for example, guests or experts invited to speak, 
benchmarks, or reports): 

• Staff created draft based upon subcommittee discussion and feedback. 

Next steps including requests or deliverables needed from staff: 

• No additional information at this time. 

1 



  

 
   

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
        

  
      

 
  

 
   

 
          

 

       

            

            
 

  

         
     

             

    
        

       
        

          
      

       
       

 
      

       
      

         
       

    
    

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

Subcommittee: Language Modernization 

Charge: 

1. Whether the Charter shall be generally amended to 
update its language to more accurately reflect current 
processes, acknowledgments, and roles 

2. Section 11; calling special meetings 

Reporting Period: February 22, 2024 

Members in attendance: Maria Salazar (chair); Shelley Potter; Rogelio Saenz; Bonnie 
Prosser-Elder, (CRC Co-Chair) 

Absent: Frank Garza, David Zammielo (CRC Co-Chair) 

Staff support: Camila Kunau (CAO), John Peterek (CMO), and Megan Janzen (CMO) 

Meeting agenda: continue review of charge for Section 11 seeking clarity and process 
recommendations; scheduling next committee meeting (2/28; 6:00-7:00 pm). 

Discussion summary: 

1. Section 11 three councilmembers requesting a special meeting: 
a. Frank Garza’s recommendation to edit adding that the subject must be a 
“municipal question”. Definition of that is in the City’s Ethics Code, Section 2-62. 

City of San Antonio City Code, ARTICLE III. - CODE OF ETHICS, 
DIVISION 5. – LOBBYISTS, Sec. 2-62. - Definitions. 
(k) Municipal question means a public policy issue of a discretionary nature 
pending or impending before City Council or any board or commission, 
including, but not limited to, proposed action, or proposals for action, in the 
form of ordinances, resolutions, motions, recommendations, reports, 
regulations, policies, nominations, appointments, sanctions, and bids, 
including the adoption of specifications, awards, grants, or contracts. 

The term "municipal question" does not include the day-to-day application, 
administration, or execution of existing City programs, policies, ordinances, 
resolutions, or practices, including matters that may be approved 
administratively without consideration by a board, a commission, or the 
City Council. The term "municipal question" does include all discretionary 
matters before the Board of Adjustment, the Planning Commission and all 
advisory committees and subcommittees thereof. 

1 



  

 
   

   
 

              
 

 
        

 
 

     
  

    
              

     
  

   

 
 

            

      
        

             
 

   
              

   
 

          
 

 
   

 
   

               
  

  
        

  
 

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

b. The Committee discussed asking for a City Attorney opinion interpreting the 
phrase “municipal question” to clarify that it is a matter upon which the City 
Council is authorized to take action, and that affects the governance of the City of 
San Antonio. 

2. Several COSA Department recommendations from San Antonio Police 
Department, City Clerk and Finance Department. 

a. San Antonio Police Department: 
Section 58. Update language recommended to reflect that there are city 
employees licensed as peace officers by the state of Texas, and not just officers 
in the police department. There are peace officers who work in the Airport Police 
and Park Police Departments. There are also contracted peace officers who are 
not city employees who work special events like Fiesta. 

b. City Clerk: 

Section 15. Remove reference to “well bound books” and Ordinance “book”. 
Original 1951 language. City is required by state law to retain City records and 
efficiencies in technology no longer require binding or keeping records in books. 

Section 17. (second paragraph) Current provision, amended in 2015 to reduce 
the number of external codes adopted by the City (plumbing and electrical, for 
example) from three to two, now recommended to be reduced to one. The City 
keeps them as a permanent records. As these are now posted online, only one 
physical copy is needed. 

Section 19. Filing fee for place on the ballot of $100 was set in 1974 – in today’s 
money that would be $622. Discussion revolved around purpose of fee, it’s not to 
defray costs of holding the election or providing candidate packets, and may 
have a negative impact to candidates if raised. 

A few other provisions were recommended but time constraints limited 
discussion, which will occur later. 

c. Finance Department: 

Section 55. Refers to the creation of the Finance Department. The director is 
required to provide a bond, which the city pays. The provision is outdated, as the 
Chief Financial Officer, a newer position, also is required to provide a bond. The 
addition of the CFO to this provision is suggested. Further, the language is a bit 
redundant in that it says “the director of the finance department shall be the head 
of such department”. Suggestion is to revise that sentence to remove “shall be 
the head of such department”. 

2 



  

 
   

 
    

    
               

   
   
  

  
 

  
              

 
 

  
           

  
 

            
  

 
       

          
    

    
   

Charter Review Commission 
Subcommittee Status Report 

3. Other outdated provisions 
a. Section 30, Recall election ordered. Current language requires a special 
election to be held “not less than thirty nor more than forty days after the petition 
has been presented to the council”. State law now provides for two uniform 
election days in May and November, and City not permitted to hold a special 
election on a different day absent an order granting such a request by the 
Governor. Rare. 

Recommendation is to mirror the language in Section 8 which provides for a 
special election to be held on the next available uniform election date that allows 
compliance with state laws governing elections. 

b. Section 36, Forms of petitions. Current language permits a signature to a 
petition (recall, referendum, initiative) to be in ink “or indelible pencil”. Indelible 
pencil is an outdated term, and ink is sufficient. 

c. Section 4, creation, composition and powers of the city council. Includes 
reference to outdated term “ward” as well as current term “district”. 

4. Discussion of content for preliminary report. 

Resources consulted (for example, guests or experts invited to speak, 
benchmarks, or reports): City Ethics Code, Draft Charter 

Next steps including requests or deliverables needed from staff: preliminary 
report draft, discussion of other department requests (if any) 

3 



 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Charter Review Commission 

March 4, 2024 
Central Library 



 

 
 

    

   

   
       
       
   

  

    

• Agenda 
• Approval of Minutes 

• Public Comment 

• Preliminary Recommendations: 
• Ethics officer and other ethics revisions 
• City Council compensation and term length 
• Language modernization 

• Adjournment 

Charter Review Commission 2 



 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 
   

• 

Public Comment 

Charter Review Commission 3 



Roadmap 
Meeting Date 

    
 

        

 
 

 

 
  

 

       
  
       
   

       
     
      

 
 
 
 
 

March 4 Presentation of preliminary recommendations by: 
• Ethics 
• City Council compensation and term length 
• Language modernization 

March 21* Presentation of preliminary recommendations by: 
• Council districts and redistricting 
• City Manager tenure and compensation 

*March 21 CRC meeting to serve as checkpoint 

Charter Review Commission 4 



Roadmap 

Charter Review Commission 5 

Continue to refine 
recommendation based on 
research, discussion, and 
feedback from CRC and 
the public. 

Presentation by all subcommittees of final proposals 

May 20 
and 23 

Final discussion and actions 

Meeting 
Date 
April 11 

April 25 

Presentations by: 
• Ethics 
• City Council compensation and term length 
• Language modernization 
Presentations by: 
• Council districts and redistricting 
• City Manager tenure and compensation 

May 6 and 
9 

    
 

   
  

  
   
 

       

 
  

    

 
 

 

 

 

  
 

 
  

   
  
       
   

  
     
      

   
 

 

  



    
 

  
 

            
 

   

 
           

 

            
 

         

          

Meeting Protocols 
Commission members are encouraged to share their insight, knowledge and 
experience and in doing so should understand and appreciate that others may have an 
equally relevant, important but different point of view that deserves respect. 

Commission members should: 

• recognize that their colleagues are individuals with a wide variety of backgrounds, 
personalities, values, opinions, and goals who have chosen to volunteer their time to 
this important effort. 

• be mindful of the content, tone and delivery of their words while asking a question or 
making a comment to others involved in this process. 

• respect the public and other members’ speaking time. 

• practice civility, professionalism and decorum in discussions and debate. 

Charter Review Commission 6 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

      
       
   

 
  

• 

Subcommittee Preliminary Recommendations 

- Ethics Officer and Other Revisions 
- City Council Compensation and Term Length 
- Language Modernization 

Charter Review Commission 



 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

    
   

Charter Review Commission 

Ethics Subcommittee 
Preliminary Findings and Recommendations 

March 4, 2024 



        
 

 
 

  

   

   

    

  

   

   

Agenda 
• Charge 

• Action Plan 

• Resource Investment 

• Research and Analysis 

• Conclusions 

• Preliminary Recommendations 

• Next Steps 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 9 



        
 

     
 

 
  

        
       

       

       
         

    
        

 
    

   

   
  

     

• Ethics Officer and Other Revisions 
Charge 
Ethics Officer - Whether the City should Chair: 
be able to appoint an independent ethics 
auditor with a legal background • Mike Frisbie 

Other Ethics Revisions - Whether the Members: 
Ethics Review Board should be • Elva Pai Adams 
autonomous with independent oversight 
and power to compel testimony, and • Josh Baugh 
whether any additional 
recommendations would strengthen the 
effectiveness, authority, and/or 

• Bobby Perez 
• Shelley Potter 

jurisdiction of the board 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 10 



        
 

  
 

         
      

 
    

         
 

      

Action Plan 
• First few meetings - fact finding/discovery. Asked staff: 

• Compile information regarding Ethics Review Board (ERB) and Ethics 
Auditor 

• Ethics Auditor and ERBs best practices 
• Seek multiple experts to speak to authority and independence of Ethics 

Auditors and ERBs 
• Develop preliminary recommendations in prep for CRC Meeting 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 11 



        
 

 
 

 
    

 
         

 

Resource Investment 

• Subcommittee met five times 

• Subcommittee members spent an estimated 60 hours, while Staff spent an 
estimated 55 hours working on the charge 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 12 



        
 

 
 

     

 
          

 
         

 

Resource Investment 

• Sources were consulted to determine: 

(1) current independence and authority of ERB and Ethics Auditor 

(2) best practices and ways to increase independence/authority of ERB and 
Ethics Auditor 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 13 



        
 

 
 

   
    
      

   
    

       

 
     

   
  

    
   

Resource Investment 
• COSA information: 
2022 ERB Annual Report 
ERB Recommended Code Revisions and Summaries 
Ethics Complaints 2014-2023 
ERB Meeting Summaries 2014-2023 
Boards & Commissions Appointment and Term Research 

• Information including other cities 
ERB City Comparison Chart 
ERB Independence/Appointments Research 
Model City Charter/National Civic League 
Ethics Auditor Research 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 14 



        
 

  
 
 

 

     
 

    

   

  
 
 

Organizational Structure 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 15 

City Attorney 
Ethics 
Review 
Board 

City Auditor City Manager Boards and 
Commissions 

Mayor and City Council 

San Antonio Residents 



        
 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

Organizational Structure 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 16 

Ethics 
Auditor 

City Auditor 

Audit Staff 
(x6) 

Audit 
Manager 

Audit Staff 
(x6) 

Audit 
Manager 

Audit Staff 
(x5) 

Audit 
Manager 



        
 

    
 

 

      
   

       
 

      
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

      
 

 

       
 

       
 

      
     

        
 

       
 

      
 

Comparison of Ethics Boards 
City Charter Based? Oversight Function Subpoena / 

Testimony Power Notes 

San Antonio Yes Ethics Review Board Yes 

Austin No Ethics Review Commission Yes 

Dallas No Ethics Advisory Commission Yes 
Charter provides power to establish a code 

of ethics by ordinance not specific to 
commission 

El Paso Yes Ethics Review Commission Yes 

Ft. Worth No Ethics Review Commission Yes 

Houston No Ethics Commission No Commission does not have power; 
however, Inspector General Office does 

State of Texas NA Texas Ethics Commission Yes 

Atlanta, GA Yes Board of Ethics Yes 

Phoenix, AZ No Ethics Commission Yes 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 17 



 
 

    
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

  

    
         

 
       

  
    

 

         
  

      
 

 
  

 
    

  

  
  

 

      

 

  
       

  

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

         
 

      
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

       
  

 

 
       

   

 
 

                
  

 
 

  

 
 

    

 
 

 

      
  

    
 

       
   

      
 

  

  
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

 
         

 
       

  

 
 

Comparison of Ethics Auditors 
City 

Ethics Auditor or 
Equivalent
Position 

Legal Background 
Required? Notes Scope of Work Reporting Entity 

San Antonio Yes – Compliance 
Auditor No City Attorney’s Office issues legal opinions relating to 

ethics questions 
High profile contract review, general ethics work, 

ERB support and complaints, ethics training 
Hosted in City Auditor’s 

Office 

Austin No ̶ The Open Government / Ethics and Compliance 
division provides some ethics support 

Legal advice, ethics training, support to Ethics 
Commission 

Division of City 
Attorney’s Office 

Dallas Yes – Chief 
Integrity Officer 

No -
But CCEP 
required 

Investigative authority that assumes the primary 
responsibility of identifying, investigating, and 

resolving ethical issues 

Investigates other municipal integrity matters 
related to fraud, waste, and abuse, issues advisory 

opinions, general ethics work 

Inspector General’s 
Division, Division of the 
City Attorney’s Office 

El Paso No ̶ City Attorney, Deputy City Manager and City Manager 
staff support Ethics Review Commission 

Provides support to the Ethics Review Commission 
and the officials and staff of City ̶ 

Ft. Worth No ̶ 
City Council has final say on ethics issues including 

taking disciplinary action against city officials or 
employees who violate the Code 

City Attorney's Office provides legal advice and 
assistance to Ethics Advisory Commission and can 

issue advisory opinions on ethical matters 
̶ 

Houston No ̶ City Attorney’s Office provides ethics support Ethics opinions, ethics training, support for Ethics 
Commission ̶ 

Atlanta, GA Yes – Ethics Officer Yes 

Office consists of 11 individuals – including the Ethics 
Officer, Deputy Ethics Officer, 

Program Manager, Analysts, Investigator, and 
administrative support staff 

Ethics training, provides legal advice and opinions; 
investigates complaints, prosecutes violations of 

Code of Ethics, coordinates ethics and compliance 
hotline (Integrity Hotline), and manages financial

disclosure system 

Inspector General’s 
Office 

(does not report to 
Council) 

Phoenix, AZ No ̶ City Auditor, City Attorney, and City Manager’s Office 
provide ethics support 

City Manager handles violations of ethics policies 
and laws by employees and volunteers ̶ 

18 



        
 

   
 

         
 

    
      

  
 

     
       

  
   

    
     

 
   

    
  

     
       

 
    

 

Subject Matter Experts 
Two experts consulted – Jason King and Patrick Lang 

• Mr. King discussed: 
• Pro and cons for ethics officers 

having legal background 
• Measures to provide more 

independence for an Ethics Auditor 
• Pros and cons for ERB term limits 
• Provided areas to consider 

strengthening ERB authority 

• Mr. Lang discussed: 
• Satisfaction with how ERB currently 

functions 
• Supports idea of bringing ERB 

protections from Ethics Code into 
City Charter 

• Satisfaction of Ethics Auditor work 
• Pros and cons of ERB term limits 

and prohibition from serving on 
ERB and other boards or 
committees 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 19 



        
 

 
 

                
 

               

 

 
             

 

              

                  

                 
 

            

Research and Analysis 
• Texas State law does not permit board that fully operates with no interference or oversight from the 

council. City cannot delegate their authority to board of which they have no oversight. 

• No fully independent Ethics Auditor in TX. Focus should be on where best positioned in organization to 
strike a balance between independence and collaboration. A legal background is not normally a 
requirement for an Ethic/Compliance Auditor in other similar organizations. 

• ERB ordinances contain many protections for authority and independence of ERB, including ability to hire 
outside council or compliance auditors, recusal provisions, and to compel testimony. Some protections are 
not currently in Charter so could be changed by City Council. 

• Term limits for City boards and commissions vary. ERB members are limited to three terms. 

• Budget and staffing for ERB not guaranteed by Charter and could be eliminated or reduced by Council. 

• “Conflicts of interest” in the Ethics Code only relate to economic interests. There is potential for other 
significant interests that could affect or appear to affect an officer’s conduct. 

• Overall, COSA ERB and the position of Ethics Auditor are functioning well. 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 20 



        
 

 
 

           
  

              
 

             
 

              

          
 

             
 

Conclusions 
• No benefit to remove Ethics Auditor position from City Auditor’s Office and elevate; 

Ethics Auditor does not need to have a legal background 

• Funding for ERB is required by ordinance but not by Charter so City Council does 
have ability to prevent ERB from acting by defunding them 

• Term limits prevent trained and effective individuals from continuing to serve on ERB, 
while terms allow for new appointments 

• ERB should have ability to review ethics violations for entire tenure of elected officials 

• Definition of “conflicts of interest” should be expanded to include more situations 
where there is an appearance of conflict 

• ERB does not have ability to review complaints that have been resolved by others and 
not review complaints that have been resolved by others 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 21 



        
 

  
 

            
 

     

           
 

             

             

        

            
 

Preliminary Recommendations 
• RE “Ethics Officer” charge: creating higher level Ethics Auditor that reports directly to 

elected officials is not recommended. 

• RE “Other Ethics Revisions” charge: 

• Guarantee ERB funding including budget to operate and hire outside council as 
needed 

• Since terms allow for new appointments, remove term limits for ERB members 

• Tie look back provision for elected official ethics cases to full tenure 

• Extend the definition of “conflicts of interest” 

• Increase discretion of ERB to determine whether to accept or refuse complaints 
when the complaints have been otherwise resolved 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 22 



        
 

  
 

 
 

 
       

    

      

   

• Next Steps 

• Listen to public and CRC input 
• Conduct further research 
• Meet to further develop recommendations 
• Finalize recommendations 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 23 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
      

• 

Q & A 

Ethics Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 24 



 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

Thank You 
End of Presentation 



 

 



 

   
 
 
 

 
    

 
   

   

¥ 
- S\IX3! -

OINOlNV NVS 
:10 All) 

¥ 

Charter Review Commission 

City Council Compensation & Term Length 
Subcommittee 

Preliminary Findings and Recommendations
March 4, 2024 



            
 

 
 

  

      

   

  

   

Agenda 

• Charge 

• Action Plan: The Sub-Committee's Approach 

• Resource Investment 

• Compensation 

• Term Limits 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 28 



            
 

  
 

 
    

     

   

   

Agenda | Compensation 

• Research and Analysis 

• Initial Findings and Conclusions 

• Preliminary Recommendations 

• Next Steps 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 29 



            
 

      
 

 
 

 

    
     

 
      

 
 

  
 

       

 

 
   

 
   
   
   
   

City Council Compensation and Term Length 
Charge 
City Council Member Compensation: 
Whether City Council members should 
be compensated on indexed terms that 
more accurately reflect the city’s cost of 
living and lower barriers to participation 
in City government 

City Council Term Length: Whether 
Mayoral or Mayoral and Council terms 
should be extended to four years with a 
limit of two terms, and whether such 
terms should be staggered 

Chair: 
• Luisa Casso 
Members: 
• Josh Baugh 
• Mike Frisbie 
• Martha Martinez-Flores 
• Dwayne Robinson 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 30 



 
 

  
 

      
             

      
      

 
 
 

   
   

 

     
  
   

  
   

    
   
     

 
    

Sub-Committee Background 
Chair: Luisa Casso, Government affairs & Communications 
Members: Josh Baugh, Communications & Journalist; Mike Frisbie, Engineer & City Infrastructure; Martha Martinez-Flores,
Creative and Communications Bilingual Consultant; Dwayne Robinson, Government consulting 
• Cumulative of (100+) years of interfacing with municipal government 

Boards & Commissions 
● CPS Energy CAC ● Charter Review Commission 
● Bond Advisory Committees ● Historic Design Review Commission ● Brackenridge Park Stakeholder ● MLK Commission ○ Advisory Committee ● Hemisfair Park Area Redevelopment ● City Engineer Corporation 

○ External Affairs Committee 

31 



            
 

  
 

         
 

       
 

 

   
        

      
       
      
      

Resource Investment 
• Analysis of term length, term limits, and compensation in other cities. COSA 

staff gathered research at the direction of the sub-committee 
• Benchmarking against comparable cities, including: Dallas, Fort Worth, El 

Paso, Austin, Phoenix, San Jose, Philadelphia, San Diego and Corpus 
Christi 

• Met four times 
• Four additional meetings with former City Council Members 

• Ana Sandoval, District 7, 2017-2021 
• William "Cruz" Shaw, District 2, 2017-2019 
• Rey Saldaña, District 4, 2011-2019 
• Reed Williams, District 8, 2009-2013 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 32 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

   City Council Compensation 

33 



            
 

  
 

        

    

   

       
      

 
   

Action Plan 
• Reviewed charters and salary levels of other cities 

• Interviewed former council members 

• Analyzed compensation data 

• Discussed whether and how to index compensation 
• Potential sources of indexing metrics 

• Evaluated potential benefits beyond base salary, including retirement, but
chose to remain focused solely on base compensation for mayor and council 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 34 



            
 

   
 

    
   

         
    

 

 
     

       
 

Research and Analysis 

• Current City Charter language 
• Sec. 6. Compensation. Each member of the council shall receive as 

compensation for their services as such member the sum of $45,722, and 
the Mayor shall receive the sum of $61,725 per annum. (Ord. No. 2015-
05-20-0423, § 3 (Prop. 2), 5-20-15) 

• Sub-committee reviewed other city charters 
• Council compensation overwhelmingly included in city charters in 

comparable cities 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 35 



 
 

    
 

     
 

 

    

 
 

 
   

 

  
 
 
 

         
  

 

    
    

   

    

    

   

   

    

   

    

    

• Comparison cities 
City Mayor City Council 

San Antonio $61,725 $45,722 

Dallas $80,000 $60,000 

Fort Worth $54,000 $25,000 

El Paso $67,950 $45,300 

Austin $134,191 $116,688 

Phoenix* $88,000 $61,600 

San Jose** $202,702 $133,356 

Philadelphia $123,000 $98,000 

San Diego $238,479 $238,479 

Corpus Christi $9,000 $6,000 

El Paso: charter indexes salary 

Phoenix: A citizens’ committee sets compensation rates for 
City Council 

San Jose charter: “The base salary shall be in an amount 
which takes into account the full time nature of the office and 
which is commensurate with salaries then being paid for other 
public or private positions having similar full time duties, 
responsibilities and obligations.” Salaries are set by a salary 
commission. 

San Diego: By charter, Mayor and Council compensation set 
equal to that of the state superior court judge 

Houston not included because of its different form of 
*https://www.phoenix.gov/hrsite/benefit%20category/alphaplan.pdf government 
**https://data.sanjoseca.gov/dataset/employee-compensation-plan/resource/efbf228b-f436-4297-aef2-48980ae1f579 

36 

https://www.phoenix.gov/hrsite/benefit%20category/alphaplan.pdf
https://data.sanjoseca.gov/dataset/employee-compensation-plan/resource/efbf228b-f436-4297-aef2-48980ae1f579


            
 

   
 

     
       

  
       

     
    
    

    

Research and Analysis 

• Reviewed composition of council offices 
• Including council office staff compensation and job descriptions 

• Data reviewed 
• Area Median Income within San Antonio city limits 
• Median salaries of city employees 

• Executive level only 
• All civilian salaries 

• Bexar County Commissioners Court compensation 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 37 



            
 

   
 

      
  

  
    

  
       

Council job description 

• Discussed the duties of City Council members 
• Staff management 
• Policy decisions 
• Council meetings, committee meetings 
• Constituent demands 
• City representation in district, city, region and beyond 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 38 



 
 

   
 

         

 
 

                

  
          

          
 

   
 

        

Preliminary recommendations based on 
sub-committee conclusions 
• Index Mayor and Council salaries to a predetermined cohort 

• Example: 

• Index to a percentage of City of San Antonio median base salary of director-level employees 
(currently $192,582) 

• Mayor: 47% to 72% of the median base salary of COSA directors 
Council: 39% to 65% of the median base salary of COSA directors 

• Based on the indexed percentages above, salary today would be: 
Mayor: $90,000-$140,000 
City Council: $75,000-$125,000 

• Salaries would be reviewed on a periodic basis 

39 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

    City Council Term Limits 

40 



            
 

  
 

      

    

    
   
    
    
        

  
 

Action Plan 
• Reviewed term limits in comparable cities 

• Interviewed former council members 

• Determined areas of discussion 
• Term length 
• Number of terms 
• Whether to stagger 
• Total years for service in a seat 

• Discussed implications of implementation of proposed changes to terms 
and term limits 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 41 



            
 

 
 

    
      

  
 

  

  

            

   
   
  
    

   
   
     

Analysis 
• Current City Charter language 

Sec. 5. - Terms of office. 
The terms of office of all members of the council elected at a regular municipal election shall be for two (2)
years beginning on the first day of June next following their election. 

If a member of the council shall file to become a candidate for nomination or election to any public office, other
than that of member of the council, he or she shall vacate immediately his or her place on the council and the 
vacancy thereby created shall be filled in the same manner as any other vacancies. 

(Ord. No. 44594, § 1 (Prop. 7), 11-07-74; Ord. No. 85965, § 1 (Prop. 1), 5-5-97) 

• Term length
• Two-year versus four-year 
• Campaign cycles 
• Time spent on politics versus governance 

• Term limits 
• Eight years versus 12 years 
• Potential for stagnation and complacency 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 42 



            
 

   
 
 

     

      

    
  

   

     

       

      

      
    

       

    

      

     
    

Research and Analysis 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 43 

City Term Length Term Limit 

San Antonio Two years Four terms 

Dallas Council: Two years 
Mayor: Four years 

Four consecutive terms 

Fort Worth Two years None 

El Paso Four years 10 total years 

Austin Two years Two consecutive terms 

Phoenix Four years Mayor: Two terms 
Council: Three consecutive terms 

San Jose Four years Two consecutive terms 

Philadelphia Four years None 

San Diego Four years Two terms 

Corpus Christi Two years Mayor: Four consecutive terms 
Council: Two consecutive terms 



            
 

   
 

           
    
   

 
 

           
       

           
 

 

 

Analysis and Discussion 
• Discussed benefits and shortcomings of expanding term length to four years 

• Extends focus on governance 
• Reduces election cycles 
• Dissatisfied voters either push recall or wait longer period to elect 

new representative 

• Discussed whether to expand number of term limits beyond eight years 
• Concerns over complacency and stagnation, career politicians 

• Discussed whether to stagger terms and how to implement expanded terms 
• Implications of two cohorts with mayoral race having significant impact 

on one 
• Continuity of council service for city staff, large capital projects and 

institutional knowledge 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 44 



            
 

    
 

    

 

     

  

     

 

   

Preliminary recommendations based on 
sub-committee conclusions 

Recommendations on Term Limits: 

Mayor: 

Two four-year terms starting in 2025 

City Council: 

Two four-year Terms starting in 2025 

Implementation: 

To be determined 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 45 



 
 

     
 

 
           

    
  

 
           

 
 

         
 

Questions still to be addressed 

• Implementation of four-year terms will have an impact on all current council 
members, particularly who will have completed one or three terms at the 
conclusion of the 2023-25 council term. 

• Whether to stagger terms, leading to elections every two years, or to have 
all 11 seats on ballot every four years 

• Appointments and special elections for vacated mayoral and council seats 
that would need to be updated for four-year terms 

46 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
        

• 

Q & A 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 47 



 

  
 

   

   

      
 

            

• Next Steps 
• Commission Feedback 
• Public Comment 
• Further discussion on previously identified 

unanswered questions 

City Council Compensation & Term Length - 2024 Charter Review Commission 48 



 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

C 
-svxu-

OINO!NV NVS 
~O All) 

}f. 
Thank You 

End of Presentation 



 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   
 

Charter Review Commission 

Language Modernization Subcommittee 
Preliminary Findings and Recommendations 

March 4, 2024 



         
 

 
 

  

   

    

     

   

Agenda 
• Charge 

• Action Plan 

• Research and Analysis 

• Conclusions and Preliminary Recommendations 

• Next Steps 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 51 



         
 

 

  
 

 

     
       

    
  

 
 
 
 

 
  

 
  

  
  

Language Modernization 
Charge 
Language - Whether the Charter shall be 
generally amended to update its language to 
more accurately reflect current processes, 
acknowledgments, and roles 

Chair: 
• Maria Salazar 
Members: 
• Frank Garza 
• Shelley Potter 
• Rogelio Saenz 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 52 



         
 

  
 

       
          

 
         

  

Action Plan 
• Review Charter to locate and update stale or outdated language 
• City staff shared internal edits to standardize gender references, outdated, 

superseded by state law or practice, remove obsolete words and phrases 
• Consulted policies of peer cities for special meetings of the City Council; San 

Jose California has a detailed policy, no other peer city does 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 53 



         
 

   
 

         
          

       
 

         
 

     
    

Research and Analysis: Committee 
• Met four times prior to March 4 initial update 
• Outdated and Superseded provisions – 105 sections of 168 affected 

• He/him/his/she/her/hers – change to they/their or omit as appropriate 
(approx. 111) 

• Archaic terms –herein, hereinafter, hereby, etc. - remove and replace 
with current phrases (approx. 213) 

• No change to 44 Sections/subsections 
• 14 Sections are reserved 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 54 



         
 

  
 

         
 

         
 

          
  

            
       

         

Research and Analysis: Committee 
• Creation, composition and powers: Section 4 – delete “wards”, a term not 

used to describe breakdown of City into Council districts 
• Special Meetings: Section 11 – special meeting called if three 

councilmembers request in writing 
• add that it must be a municipal question, an issue the Council can 

address that impacts government of City 
• delete calling of meeting by the Clerk as that is outdated language 
• “municipal question” defined in City’s Ethics Code 
• Request City Attorney legal opinion for examples of “municipal question” 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 55 



         
 

  
 

          
 

          
 

 
          
          

Research and Analysis: Committee 
• Recall election: Section 30 – may only be on uniform election dates, amend 

to reflect state law 
• Form of Petitions: Section 36 – remove reference to signatures permitted to 

be made with “indelible pencil” as not required by law 
• Appointment of Ethics Review Board: Section 166 – revise to be same 

manner as other City boards (nomination by memo, action by Council at one 
meeting rather than nomination at one meeting and appointment at the next) 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 56 



         
 

   
 

      
 

   
   
   
    

Research/Analysis: City Departments 
• Other outdated and superseded provisions recommended include those 

provided by several City Departments: 
• City Clerk 
• Finance Department 
• Municipal Court 
• San Antonio Police Department 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 57 



         
 

   
 

   

         
 

   
          

 
            

  
 

   
         

Research/Analysis: City Departments 
• City Clerk: 

• Recording of ordinances: Section 16 - outdated requirement to record 
ordinances in well bound books; ordinances are saved electronically 

• Adopted Codes: Section 17 – Clerk is required to keep two copies on 
file, and in permanent collection. Codes are now online, only one copy 
needed 

• Oath of Office: Section 138 – add city boards and commissions to those 
required to take the official oath of office prescribed by the Texas 
Constitution 

• Loyalty Oath: Section 159 – delete and reserve section as City has 
used state promulgated oaths for decades, referenced in Section 138 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 58 



         
 

   
 

  

           
 

   
          

 

Research/Analysis: City Departments 
• Finance: 

• Finance Department: Section 55 - Add Chief Financial Officer to those 
required to be bonded 

• Delinquent taxes: Section 96 – penalties and interest on delinquent 
taxes; delete and reserve section as state law changed in 2019 and 
addresses in total 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 59 



         
 

   
 

   

          
 

            
       

 
 

Research/Analysis: City Departments 
• Municipal Court: 

• Corporation Court: Section 112 – rename to Municipal Courts and 
Judiciary 

• Section 112: revise requirement that Judges reside in the City at least 
three years immediately preceding appointment to be that required by 
state law for San Antonio judges (currently three years, but could 
change) 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 60 



         
 

   
 

  

  
 

             
 

 

Research/Analysis: City Departments 
• SAPD: 

• Authority and duties of police officers: Section 58 - “officers and 
policemen of the police department” changed to “City employees 
licensed as peace officers by the State of Texas”, to clarify it applies 
only to the Police, Airport Police and Park Police Departments; 
“policemen” change to “uniformed members” 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 61 



         
 

  
 

  
        

 
       

   
 

Conclusions and Recommendation 
• Committee recognizes that current text of charter contains many outdated, 

superseded provisions and agrees that updating of the document will better 
serve and reflect the community and regulations will be clearer 

• The Committee recommends the revisions discussed in slides five through 
twelve, and continues to review the charter and staff recommendations for 
additional amendments 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 62 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
    

• 

Q & A 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 63 



 

  
 

     
 

     
 

         

• Next Steps 
• Continue to review document for 

appropriate revisions 
• Continue to receive recommendations from 

City Departments and committee members 

Language Modernization Subcommittee - 2024 Charter Review Commission 64 



 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

Thank You 
End of Presentation 



 

  
 

 
        

 
      
      

    
   

    

• Next Meeting 

Thursday, March 21, 2024 – public comment and 
preliminary recommendations from: 

o City Manager tenure and compensation 
o City Council districts and redistricting 

o 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m. 
o Central Library 

Charter Review Commission 66 



 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

Thank You 
End of Presentation 


	State of Texas County of Bexar City of San Antonio
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report

	City of San Antonio
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report
	Charter Review Commission Subcommittee Status Report

	Charter Review Commission
	Agenda

	Public Comment
	Roadmap
	Meeting Protocols

	Charter Review Commission
	Agenda
	Ethics Officer and Other Revisions

	Action Plan
	Resource Investment
	Resource Investment
	Resource Investment
	Research and Analysis
	Conclusions
	Preliminary Recommendations
	Next Steps


	Q & A
	Thank You
	Charter Review Commission
	Agenda
	Agenda | Compensation
	City Council Compensation and Term Length
	Charge
	Chair:
	Members:


	Sub-Committee Background
	Boards & Commissions

	Resource Investment
	City Council Compensation
	Research and Analysis
	Comparison cities
	Research and Analysis
	Council job description
	Preliminary recommendations based on sub-committee conclusions
	City Council Term Limits
	Analysis
	Sec. 5. - Terms of office.
	• Term length
	• Term limits

	Research and Analysis
	Mayor:
	City Council:

	Questions still to be addressed


	Q & A
	Next Steps
	Thank You
	Charter Review Commission
	Agenda
	Language Modernization
	Charge
	Chair:
	Members:



	Action Plan
	Research and Analysis: Committee
	Research and Analysis: Committee
	Research and Analysis: Committee
	Research/Analysis: City Departments
	Research/Analysis: City Departments
	Research/Analysis: City Departments
	Research/Analysis: City Departments
	Research/Analysis: City Departments
	Conclusions and Recommendation


	Q & A
	Next Steps
	Thank You
	Next Meeting
	Thank You


